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Notice of Annual General Meeting 

Notice is hereby given that the 41st Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of the Baba Farid Sugar Mills 
Limited will be held on Monday, the 27th January, 2020 at 11.00 a.m. at Registered Office, 2-D-1, Gulberg III, Lahore 
to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.	 Confirmation of the minutes of the 40th Annual General Meeting of the Baba Farid Sugar Mills Limited held on 
28-01-2019.

2.	 To receive, consider and adopt Annual Audited Accounts alongwith Balance Sheet for the year ended 30th 
September 2019 together with Auditors’ and Directors’ reports thereon. 

3.	 To appoint Auditors of the Company for the next financial year 30th September, 2020 and to fix their remuneration. 
The present Auditors, M/s. BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants, Lahore, retired and being eligible, have 
offered themselves for reappointment as Auditors of the Company. 

4.	 To consider any other business with the permission of the Chair.

	 BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
 

	   MUHAMMAD IMRAN
Lahore: 30th December 2019	   Company Secretary

Note:

1.	 Closure of Shares Transfer Books:

	 Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 21-01-2020 to 27-01-2020 (both days 
inclusive). No transfer of shares will be accepted for registration during the closed period. However, 
transfer received at the office of the Company’s Share Registrar Office at M/s. Corplink (Pvt.) Limited, 
Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial Model Town, Lahore by the close of business hours on 20th January, 
2020 will be treated in time for the entitlement of payout of cash dividend (if any).

2.	 Participation in the Annual General Meeting

	 Members are requested to attend in person alongwith national identity card or appoint some other 
member as proxy and send their proxy duly witnessed so as to reach at Registered Office, 2D-1 Gulberg 
III, Lahore not later than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting. 

	 Copies of Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, Listing Regulations of the Stock 
Exchanges, Companies Act 2017 and other relevant laws/record may be inspected during the business 
hours on any working day at 2-D-1, Gulberg III, Lahore from the date of the publication of the notice till 
the conclusion of the general meeting. A Corporate member of the Company may by a resolution of its 
Board of Directors authorize a person to act as its representative at the meeting.

3.	 Change of Address:

	 Shareholders are requested to promptly notify the change in their address, if any to the Company’s Share 
Registrar M/s. Corplink (Pvt.) Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial, Model Town, Lahore and also 
furnish attested photocopy of their computerized National Identity Card as per Listing Regulations, if not 
provided earlier.
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4.	 Further Guidelines for CDC Account Holders:

	 CDC shareholders are requested to bring with them their CNICs, Participants’ ID numbers and their 
account numbers duly verified by the CDC at the time of attending the Annual General Meeting in order 
to facilitate identification. In case of corporate entity, a certified copy of the resolution passed by the 
Board of Directors/ valid Power of Attorney with specimen signatures of the nominee be produced at the 
time of meeting.

5.	 Submission of Copy of CNIC (Mandatory):

	 Pursuant to the directives of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through its 
Notification No. SRO 831 (1) 2012 dated July 5, 2012 r/w SRO 19(1)/2014 dated January 10, 2014, 
dividend warrants cannot be issued without valid CNICs. All the shareholders were advised to submit 
copies of their valid CNICs. In the absence of shareholders valid CNIC the company will be constrained 
to withhold dispatch of dividend to such shareholders. Those shareholders who have not yet submitted 
their valid CNICs are once again advised to provide attested copies of their valid CNICs with their folio 
numbers to the company’s Share Registrar if they hold physical shares, to ensure timely disbursement 
of dividend.

6.	 Revision of Withholding Tax on dividend income under Section 150 of Income Tax Ordinance 
2001:

	 It is further being informed that pursuant to the provisions of Finance Act, 2017 the rate of deduction 
of income tax under section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 from dividend payment have 
been revised as: for filers of Income Tax return 15.00% and Non-filers of Income Tax return 30.00% 
respectively. You are therefore advised to check and ensure your Filer status from Active Tax Payer List 
(ATL) available to FBR, website www.fbr.gov.pk as well as ensure that your CNIC/ Passport number has 
been recorded by your Participant/ Investor Account Services (in case your shareholding is in book entry 
form) or by Company’s Share Registrar M/s. Corplink (Pvt.) Ltd. (in case of physical shareholding).

7.	 Payment of Dividend Electronically 

	 According to the provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017 (“the Act”), any dividend payable 
in cash shall only be paid through electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the 
entitled shareholders. Further, rule 3 of the Companies (Distribution of Dividends) Regulations, 2017 
provides that the company should make payment of cash dividend within a period of fifteen working days 
from the date of its declaration. Therefore, the registered shareholders of the Company are requested 
to provide the following details in order to credit their cash dividends directly to their international bank 
account number (IBAN), if declared:

(i)	 In case of book-entry securities in CDS, to CDS Participants; and
(ii)	 In case of physical securities to the Company’s Share Registrar as mentioned below.

1.	 Name of Shareholder’s_______________________________________
2.	 Father’s / Husband’s Name;___________________________________
3.	 Folio Number;______________________________________________
4.	 Postal Address;_____________________________________________
5.	 Name of Bank;______________________________________________
6.	 Name of Branch;_____________________________________________
7.	 Address of Branch;___________________________________________
8.	 Title of Bank Account;_________________________________________
9.	 Bank Account Number (Complete with code);______________________
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10.	 IBAN Number (Complete with code);_____________________________
11.	 Cell Number;_______________________________________________
12.	 Telephone Number (if any);____________________________________
13.	 CNIC Number (attach copy);___________________________________
14.	 NTN (in case of corporate entity, attach copy);_____________________

	 IBAN number (International Bank Account Number) will be provided by your banker, containing alpha, 
number and without any space and gap.

	 To, Share Registrar 

	 M/s. Corplink (Pvt.) Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial Model Town, Lahore. Ph. No. 042-
35916719, 042-35839182, 

8.	 Electronic Transmission of Audited Financial Statements.

	 SECP through its Notification SRO No. 787 (1) 2014 dated September 8, 2014 has allowed the circulation 
of Audited Financial Statements along with Notice of Annual General Meeting to the members of the 
Company through email. Therefore, all members of the Company who wish to receive soft copy of Annual 
Report are requested to send their email addresses. The Consent Form for electronic transmission could 
be downloaded from Company’s website: www.bfsml.com. The Company has already dispatched hard 
copy of the Audited Financial Statement to its shareholders.

9.	 Video Conferencing Facility:

	 If the Company receives consent from members holding aggregate 10% or more shareholding, residing 
in geographical location to participate in the meeting through video conference at least 7 days prior to 
the date of AGM, the Company will arrange video conference facility in that city subject to availability of 
such facility in that city.

	 In this regard, please fill the following and submit to registered address of the company at least 7 days 
prior to the date of AGM.

	 I/We, ______________________ of __________________, being a member of the Baba Farid Sugar Mills 
Limited, holder of _______________ ordinary share(s) as per Registered Folio/CDC Account/Sub Account 
No. _____________________ hereby opt for video conference facility at ______________.

10.	 Zakat Declarations (CZ-50)

	 The Zakat will be deducted from the dividends at source at the rate of 2.5% of the paid-up value of the 
shares (Rs. 10/-each) under Zakat and Ushar Laws and will be deposited within the prescribed period 
with the relevant authority, Please submit your Zakat Declarations under Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 
& Rule 4 of Zakat (Deduction & Refund) Rules, 1981 CZ-50 form, in case you want to claim exemption, 
with your brokers or the Central Depository Company Ltd (In case the shares held in Investor Accounts 
Services on the CDC) or to our Registrars, M/s. Corplink (Pvt.) Limited 1-K, Commercial Model Town, 
Lahore (In case the shares are held in paper certificate form). The shareholders while sending the Zakat 
Declarations, as the case may be must quote company name and respective folio numbers.
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The Directors of your Company are pleased to present the 41st Annual Report together with Audited 
Accounts and Auditor’s Report thereon for the financial year ended 30 September 2019. 

CHANGE OF MANAGEMENT CONTROL DURING THE YEAR 

Naubahar Bottling Company (Private) Limited, Mr. Muhammad Shamim Khan, Mrs. Qaiser Shamim Khan, 
Mr. Adnan Ahmed Khan and Mr. Nauman Ahmed Khan (the Acquirers) entered into a Share Purchase 
Agreement dated 23 January 2019 with Ms. Naheed Rohi, Mr. Muhammad Ashraf, Mr. Muhammad Sarwar, 
Mr. Muhammad Shah Anjum, Ms. Rafia Aslam, Mr. Shahid Mehmood Qureshi, Syed Qaisar Abbas Naqvi, 
Mr. Maqsood Ul Hassan, Mr. Muhammad Aslam and M/s. Pattoki Sugar Mills Limited (collectively, the 
“Sponsor Sellers”) for the sale and purchase of 9,115,456 Ordinary Shares representing 96.46% of the 
total issued share capital of the Company. Further, a Public Offer was made on 27 March 2019 by the 
Acquirers to acquire up to 167,272 Ordinary Shares of the Company constituting 1.77% of the issued 
share capital of the Company at an offer price of Rupees 52 per Ordinary Share pursuant to Part IX of 
the Securities Act, 2015 (“Act”) and the Listed Companies (Substantial Acquisition of Voting Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations, 2017 (“Regulations”).  

New management took charge on 13 June 2019, after meeting of board of directors pursuant to completion 
of all legal and corporate formalities for acquisition of majority shareholding and management control of 
the Company.

Naubahar Bottling Company (Private) Limited is engaged in beverage business. Mr. Muhammad Shamim 
Khan, Mrs. Qaiser Shamim Khan, Mr. Adnan Ahmed Khan and Mr. Nauman Ahmed Khan are engaged 
in business of sugar, beverage, steel, power and textile, hence have rich relevant experience. Naubahar 
Bottling Company (Private) Limited consumes a considerable portion of total sugar produced in group and 
this demand is expected to increase every year. 

During the year under reference, the Company mainly remained under the process of change of management 
and sponsors, complying with legal & corporate formalities of SECP, Pakistan Stock Exchange and others. 
The new management is making all out efforts to increase the production capacity, improving profitability 
of the Company through process efficiency, installing latest technology equipment and reducing costs. 
The development of quality cane is being pursued by providing the latest improved seed varieties, 
fertilizers and other inputs to cane growers. We hope that in the longer term this will ultimately result in 
higher sugarcane crop/yield for the grower’s benefit and higher sugar recovery for the Company and also 
financially beneficial for the shareholders of the Company. 

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The crop size during the period under review was approximately 25% less and yield per acre being reported 
by the growers was also considerably lower. However, sucrose contents were better than last crushing 
season. 

For current crushing season 2018-19, notified support price of sugarcane in Punjab was Rs. 180/- per 40 
kg. The Federal Government allowed in December 2018 sugar export of 1.1 million tons and an export 
subsidy of Rs. 5.35/- per kg was also approved by the Punjab Government for a quantity proportionate to 
provincial share in exports (about 52%).

PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY

The Company was able to crush 26,976 M. Tons sugarcane and produced 1,936 M. Tons white refined 
sugar at an average recovery of 5.58% during the current year ended 30 September 2019 as compared 

Director’s Report to the Members
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to last year sugarcane crushing of 208,594 M. Tons and production of 18,262 M. Tons white refined sugar 
at an average recovery of 8.80%. The decline in Company’s sugar production is mainly due to inability of 
the previous management to run the mills and the operation at optimum level and partially due to overall 
reduction of sugar production in the country.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Net sales were recorded at Rs. 121.61 million during the current year as compared to Rs. 1,381.82 million 
during the corresponding period last year. Company suffered pretax loss of Rs. (627.63) million during the 
period under reference as compared to pretax loss of Rs. (378.29) million in the corresponding period last 
year. The Company’s losses were attributed to its inability to run the plant at optimum capacity level and 
resultant change of management and control.  During the transition phase the operations of the Company 
remain closed. 

After taking over, new management focused on the rehabilitation/maintenance of existing plant to make 
it capable of achieving its maximum operational efficiency. These efforts ultimately resulted in increased 
repair & maintenance. 

	 2019	 2018
Description	       (Rupees in Million)

Sales	 121.61	 1,381.82
Gross Profit / (Loss)	 (357.09)	 (163.83)
Net Profit / (Loss) before Taxation	 (627.63)	 (378.29)
Net Profit / (Loss) after Taxation	 (682.63)	 (374.07)
Earnings / (Loss) Per Share (Rs.)	 (72.24)	 (39.58)
Gross Profit / (Loss) Ratio	 (293.64%)	 (12.49%)
P/E Ratio	 (0.68)	 (0.96)
Market Price Per Share	 49.25	 38.00

			 
APPROPRIATION: -

In light of loss suffered by the Company during the year, the Board of Directors have decided not to 
recommend any cash dividend or bonus shares for the current year (2018: Nil)

DIVIDEND: -

The Directors of the Company have not recommended any dividend for the year due to current year loss 
as well as accumulated losses of the Company.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Agricultural R&D is an integral part of the Company’s policy which entails identification and multiplication of 
promising new sugarcane varieties and their subsequent commercial sowing through progressive growers 
with best agricultural practices. This not only increases per acre yield of sugar cane but also enhances 
growers earning and creates more enthusiasm for sowing sugarcane compared to competing crops. It 
also increases the sugarcane supply to the Company and boosts overall sugar recovery, directly improving 
the bottom line of the Company.

Based on the above fact, your management has decided to provide new improved varieties of sugarcane 
seed with high yield/recovery and disease/frost resistance along with fertilizers and pesticides to cane 
growers on markup free credit basis for Autumn sowing 2019, as well as free of cost timely services of 
biological laboratory at their door step so that sugarcane procurement for the next crushing season may 
not suffer.



9ANNUAL REPORT 2019

FUTURE OUTLOOK AND GOING CONCERN ASSUMPTION 

The new sponsors have a reputed profile in the industry and not only have managed operations of existing 
mills but also expanded sugar extraction from sugar beet in KP province. Furthermore, the group is 
engaged in business of sugar, beverage, steel, power and textile, hence have rich relevant experience. 
Naubahar Bottling Company (Private) Limited consumes a considerable portion of total sugar produced in 
group and this demand is expected to increase every year. 

This acquisition allows the new management to better meet increasing demand of quality sugar which 
will bring further strength, experience and efficiency to the Company. Specifically, the acquisition has the 
potential to facilitate expansion and efficient growth of business, strengthen the management and finances 
and improve financial planning; thereby facilitating business to be carried on more advantageously and 
economically with enhanced profitability. It is expected to yield better returns to the shareholders and 
additional benefits for other stakeholders. It is expected that the Company shall become financially more 
viable in comparison to its current status. 

The Company will have better managerial planning. Consequently, shall be able to pass on parts of 
the expected benefits to the other stakeholders such as the Government, employees, general body of 
consumers and the society at large. The new Directors are much more experienced and have a large 
professional management team to revive sugar mills operations and explore new markets. The new 
management is quite confident that it will be able to expand the Company’s business and operate more 
efficiently and will be able to convert into a profitably run organization in long term.

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis based on the sponsors’ 
commitment to provide financial and operational support to the Company. The management has no 
doubts about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK

1.	 The Financial Statements prepared by the Company fairly present its state of affairs, the result of 
operations, cash flows and changes in equity. 

2.	 Proper books of accounts of the Company have been maintained. 
3.	 Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements 

and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment. 
4.	 International Financial Reporting Standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of the 

Companies Act, 2017 have been followed in preparation of financial statements and there has been 
no departure there from. 

5.	 The system of internal control has been designed and effectively implemented according to the 
requirement of the industry and on modern managerial principles which are being continuously 
reviewed and monitored. The review will continue in future for the improvement in control. 

6.	 The Company has appointed M/s CORPLINK (Pvt) Ltd, independent share Registrar in terms of 
section 195 of the Companies Act, 2017. 

7.	 There is no doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
8.	 There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance. 
9.	 The key operating and financial data of the last six (06) years is annexed herewith. 
10.	 There are no statutory payments against the Company on account of Taxes, duties, levies and other 

charges except for those which are being paid in the normal course of business except those as 
disclosed the note No.32 of the financial statements (Contingencies & Commitments).

11.	 The Company maintains unfunded gratuity scheme for its permanent employees. 
12.	 Share transactions (if any) have been reported by the Directors, CFO, other Executives, Auditors, 

Company secretary or their spouses and minor children during the year ended 30 September 2019 
are annexed in pattern of shareholding.

13.	 All the information as required to be placed on Company’s website under SRO No. 634(1) 2014 is 
appropriately placed at www.bfsml.com.
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COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

The requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance relevant to the year ended 30 September 2019 
have been duly complied with. A statement to this effect is annexed with the review report from the 
auditors.

BOARD MEETINGS

During the year under review five (05) Meetings of the Board of Directors were held. Participation of 
Directors is as follows:

Sr. 
No.
  

Name of Directors (Old 
Directors)

Number 
of 

Meeting 
Attended

Name of Directors (Current 
Directors)

Number 
of 

Meeting 
Attended

Total 
Meetings

1 Mrs. Naheed Rohi
(Chairperson)

3 Mrs. Qaiser Shamim Khan 
(Chairperson)

2 5

2 Mr. Muhammad Sarwar 
(Chief Executive)

3 Mr. Adnan Ahmed Khan 
(Chief Executive)

1 4

3 Syed Qaissar Abbas Naqvi 
(Director)

3 Mr. Muhammad Shamim Khan 
(Director)

2 5

4 Mr. Muhammad Shah Anjun 
(Director)

3 Mr. Nauman Ahmed Khan 
(Director)

1 4

5 Mr. Shahid Mahmood Qureshi 
(Director)

3 Mrs. Sarah Hajra Khan 
(Director)

2 5

6 Ms. Rafia Aslam 
(Director)

3 Mr. Fareed Ud Din Ahmed 
(Independent Director)

2 5

7 Mr. Muhammad Ashraf 
(Independent Director)

3 Mr. Malik Manzoor Hussain 
Humayun 
(Independent Director) 

2 5

CHANGE IN THE BOARD

New management took charge on 13 June 2019 after meeting of board of directors pursuant to completion 
of all legal and corporate formalities for acquisition of majority shareholding and management control of 
the Company. The newly reconstituted Board was informed about various critical items requiring Board’s 
immediate attention and following major decision were taken: 

a-	  As required under section 192 of the Companies Act 2017, Mrs. Qaiser Shamim Khan (Director) was 
appointment as Chairperson of the Board as a result of vacancy generated due the resignation of 
former Chairperson, Ms. Naheed Rohi; and 

b-	 Mr. Adnan Ahmed Khan was appointed as Chief Executive Officer as a result of vacancy generated 
due the resignation of former Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Muhammad Sarwar; and 

c-	 Mr. Muhammad Imran was appointed as Company Secretary as a result of resignation of former 
Company secretary, Muhammad Ibrahim; and 
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d-	 Mr. Wasif Mahmood was appointed as Chief Financial Officer as a result of resignation of former 
Chief Financial Officer, Mr. Adnan Zulfiqar; and  

e-	 The Registered Officer of the Company was shifted from Suite – T 09, 3rd Floor, Hafeez Centre, 75-
E/1, Main Boulevard, Gulberg-III, Lahore to 2-D-1 Gulberg III, Lahore. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Best Corporate Practices

Directors are committed to good corporate governance and comply with the requirements of the Listed 
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 and the Rule Book of Pakistan Stock 
Exchange. The statement of compliance with the CCG is enclosed. The composition of the Board of Directors 
(the Board”) is as follows:
  
	 Category	 Names
	 Independent Directors	 Mr. Farid-ud-Din Ahmad
		  Mr. Malik Manzoor Hussain Humayoon
	 Executive Directors	 Mr. Adnan Ahmed Khan (CEO)
		  Mr. Muhammad Shamim Khan
	 Non-Executive Directors	 Mrs. Qaiser Shamim Khan
		  Mr. Nauman Ahmed Khan
		  Mrs. Sarah Hajra Khan

The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

AUDIT COMMITTEE

i)	 Mrs. Sarah Hajra Khan;
ii)	 Mr. Farid-ud-Din Ahmad (Chairman of the Audit Committee); and
iii)	 Mr. Malik Manzoor Hussain Humayoon

HR AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

i)	 Mr. Adnan Ahmed Khan;
ii)	 Mr. Farid-ud-Din Ahmad (Chairman of the HRR Committee); and
iii)	 Mr. Malik Manzoor Hussain Humayoon.

SHARE TRANSFER

During the year 9,115,456 number of Ordinary Shares representing 96.46% of the total issued share 
capital of the Company, has been transferred to the following persons. Further, a Public Offer was made 
on 27 March 2019 by the Acquirers to acquire up to 167,272 Ordinary Shares of the Company constituting 
1.77% of the issued share capital of the Company at an offer price of Rupees 52 per Ordinary Share 
Pursuant To Part IX of the Securities Act, 2015 (“Act”) and the Listed Companies (Substantial Acquisition 
of Voting Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2017 (“Regulations”).  Out of which the Acquirer acquired 
67,131 Ordinary Share @ Rs. 52/- Per share from General Public.
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The Breakup of Shareholding is given below:

	 Naubahar Bottling Co. (Pvt) Limited	 4,806,468
	 Mr. Muhammad Shamim Khan	 1,640,784
	 Mrs. Qaiser Shamim Khan	 911,545
	 Mr. Adnan Ahmed Khan	 911,545
	 Mr. Nauman Ahmed Khan	 911,545
	 Mr. Malik Manzoor Hussain Humayun	 200
	 Mr. Farid Ud Din Ahmed	 200
	 Mrs. Sarah Hajrah Khan	 300

HOLDING COMPANY

Naubahar Bottling Company (Pvt.) Limited is the holding company with the 50.8621% Ordinary Shares.

PATTERN   OF SHAREHOLDING

The statement of pattern of shareholding along with categories of shareholding of the Company as noted 
on 30 September 2019 required under section 227 of the Companies Act, 2017 and Code of Corporate 
Governance is annexed with this report. Statement of transaction in shares of  the Company by the 
Directors,  CEO,  CFO  and  Company Secretary  and  their spouses and  minor children  during  the  year  
is enclosed in this report.

AUDITORS

The present auditors M/s. BDO Ebrahim &Co., Chartered Accountants retired and have offered themselves 
for re-appointment. The Audit Committee has recommended M/s. BDO Ebrahim & Co., Chartered 
Accountants for re-appointment as auditor for year ended September 30, 2020.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors would like to express their appreciation for the dedication and hard work of the workers, staff 
and members of the management team. Growers are the key element of our industry and we thank them 
for their continued co-operation. The Directors of the Company are also thankful to the banks and financial 
institutions for the financial assistance and co-operation, which they have extended to the Company.

	 For and on behalf of Board
	 Baba Farid Sugar Mills Limited

	 Adnan Ahmed Khan	 Mrs. Qaiser Shamim Khan
	 Chief Executive	 Chairperson

Lahore: 30 December 2019
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OPERATING PERFORMANCE:						    
						    
Description	 2019	 2018	 2017 	 2016	 2015	 2014	 2013	

Sales	  121.61 	  1,381.82 	  1,932.15 	  1,264.12 	  1,638.08 	  1,754.60 	  1,955.01 

							     

Gross Profit / (Loss)	  (357.09)	  (163.83)	  194.67 	  139.13 	  41.87 	  266.76 	  85.92 

							     

Net Profit / (Loss) before Taxation	  (627.63)	  (378.29)	  23.96 	  3.24 	  (204.86)	  2.84 	  (135.65)

							     

Net Profit / (Loss) after Taxation	  (682.63)	  (374.07)	  29.54 	  12.49 	  (198.71)	  8.72 	  (132.32)

							     

Earning / (Loss) Per Share 	  (72.24)	  (39.58)	  3.13 	  1.32 	  (21.03)	  0.92 	  (14.00)

							     

Gross Profit / (Loss) Ratio	 (293.64%)	 (12.49%)	 10.07%	 11.00%	 2.56%	 15.20%	 4.39%

							     

P/E Ratio	  (0.68)	  (0.96)	  14.34 	  21.59 	  (1.30)	  28.80 	  (1.58)

							     

Market Price Per Share	  49.25 	  38.00 	  44.88 	  28.50 	  27.30 	  26.50 	  22.15 

7 Years Operting Results
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  1. Incorporation Number  0006535 
   
  2. Name of the Company        BABA FARID SUGAR MILLS LIMITED 
   
  2.1 Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders as at                  30/09/2019

  2.2 Number of                                       Shareholdings  Total
 Shareholders           From To Shares Held

 629 1 100 15,960
 377 101 500 67,298
 32 501 1,000 24,755
 37 1,001 5,000 89,025
 5 5,001 10,000 29,255
 1 10,001 15,000 10,500
 1 35,001 40,000 37,668
 3 910,001 915,000 2,734,635
 1 1,640,001 1,645,000 1,640,784
 1 4,800,001 4,805,000 4,800,120

 1,087    9,450,000
     
2.3 Categories of shareholders Shares Held  Percentage 

2.3.1  4,376,119 46.3081%
 and their spouse and minor children  
  
2.3.2 Associated Companies, 4,806,468 50.8621%
          undertakings and related  
          parties. (Parent Company)  
  
2.3.3 NIT and ICP 1,000 0.0106%
  
2.3.4 Banks Development 100 0.0011%
          Financial Institutions, Non  
          Banking Financial Institutions.  
  
2.3.5 Insurance Companies 0 0.0000%
  
2.3.6 Modarabas and Mutual 0 0.0000%
          Funds  
  
2.3.7 Shareholders holding 10% or more 6,447,252 68.2249%
            
2.3.8 General Public  
 a. Local 257,065 2.7203%
  0 0.0000%
  
2.3.9   
  9,248 0.0979%

THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017
(SECTION 227(2)(F)

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
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S. No.    NAME		  HOLDING	 %AGE
				  
DIRECTORS, CEO THEIR SPOUSE AND MINOR CHILDREN	
		
1	 MR. MUHAMAMD SHAMIM KHAN (CDC)	 1,640,784	 17.3628
2	 MRS. QAISER SHAMIM KHAN (CDC)	 911,545	 9.6460
3	 MR. ADNAN AHMED KHAN (CDC)	 911,545	 9.6460
4	 MR. NAUMAN AHMED KHAN (CDC)	 911,545	 9.6460
5	 MALIK MANZOOR HUSSAIN HUMAYUN	 200	 0.0021
6	 MR. FARID UL DIN AHMED	 200	 0.0021
7	 MRS. SARAH HAJRAH KHAN	 300	 0.0032

		  4,376,119	 46.3081
			 
ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
			 
1	 NAUBAHAR BOTTING COMPANY (PVT) LIMITED	 6,348	 0.0672
2	 NAUBAHAR BOTTING COMPANY (PVT) LIMITED (CDC)	 4,800,120	 50.7949

		  4,806,468	 50.8621
NIT & ICP			 
1	 M/S INVESTMENT CORPORATION OF PAKSTAN	 1,000	 0.0106

		  1,000	 0.0106
BANKS, DEVELOPMENTS, FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS,			 
NON BANKING FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
			 
1	 M/S FIDELITY INVESTMENT BANK LTD.	 100	 0.0011

		  100	 0.0011
JOINT STOCK COMPANIES
			 
1	 CENTRAL DEPOSITORY COMPANY OF PAKISTAN LTD.(CDC)	 25	 0.0003
2	 MAPLE LEAF CAPITAL LIMITED (CDC)	 1	 0.0000
3	 SALIM SOZER SECURITIES (PVT.) LTD. (CDC)	 5,222	 0.0553
4	 SARFRAZ MAHMOOD (PRIVATE) LTD. (CDC)	 500	 0.0053
5	 SANDIA LIMITED (CDC)	 3,500	 0.0370

		  9,248	 0.0979
			 
SHARES HELD BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC (FOREIGN)		  0	 0.0000
SHARES HELD BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC (LOCAL)		  257,065	 2.7203

		  257,065	 2.7203
			 

	                                                                                           TOTAL:	 9,450,000	 100.0000

Categories of Share Holders
As on 30th September 2019
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S. No.    NAME		  HOLDING	 %AGE

SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 10% OR MORE OF TOTAL CAPITAL
			 
1	 NAUBAHAR BOTTING COMPANY (PVT) LIMITED	 4,806,468	 50.8621
2	 MR. MUHAMAMD SHAMIM KHAN (CDC)	 1,640,784	 17.3628
3	 MRS. QAISER SHAMIM KHAN (CDC)	 911,545	 9.6460
4	 MR. ADNAN AHMED KHAN (CDC)	 911,545	 9.6460
5	 MR. NAUMAN AHMED KHAN (CDC)	 911,545	 9.6460

		  9,181,887	 97.1628
			 
During the financial year the trading in shares of the company by the Directors, CEO, CFO, Company 
Secretary and their spouses and minor children is as follows			 
			 
S. No.   NAME		  SALE	 PURCHASE

1	 MR. MUHAMAMD SHAMIM KHAN (CDC)	 0	 1,640,784
2	 MRS. QAISER SHAMIM KHAN (CDC)	 0	 911,545
3	 MR. ADNAN AHMED KHAN (CDC)	 0	 911,545
4	 MR. NAUMAN AHMED KHAN (CDC)	 0	 911,545
5	 MALIK MANZOOR HUSSAIN HUMAYUN	 0	 200
6	 MR. FARID UL DIN AHMED	 0	 200
7	 MRS. SARAH HAJRAH KHAN	 0	 300
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The Baba Farid Sugar Mills Limited (“the Company”) has complied with the requirements of the Listed Companies (Code 
of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (“the Regulations”) in the following manner:
  
1.	 The total number of directors are seven as per the following:

	 a.	 Male: 05
	 b.	 Female: 02

2.	 The composition of the Board of Directors (the Board”) is as follows:

	 Category	 Names
	 Independent Directors	 Mr. Farid-ud-Din Ahmad
		  Mr. Malik Manzoor Hussain Humayoon
	 Non-Executive Director	 Mrs. Qaiser Shamim Khan
		  Mr. Nauman Ahmed Khan
		  Mrs. Sarah Hajra Khan
	 Executive Directors	 Mr. Adnan Ahmed Khan (CEO)
		  Mr. Muhammad Shamim Khan
	 Female Directors	 Mrs. Qaiser Shamim Khan
		  Mrs. Sarah Hajra Khan

	 There are two Independent directors, however, as required fraction is not rounded up as one as  this “clause” 
was added in the new regulation  issued on September 25, 2019, and the Board was constituted before that 
date and the Regulation has provided relaxation that for the purpose of electing independent director, the 
Board shall be reconstituted not later than expiry of its current terms;

3.	 The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed companies, 
including this Company;

4.	 The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to 
disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures;

5.	 The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the 
Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of significant policies along with their 
date of approval or updating is maintained by the Company;

6.	 All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by 
the board /shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these regulations;

7.	 The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by 
the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of the Act and the Regulations with 
respect to frequency, recordings and circulating minutes of meeting of the board.

8.	 The Board of Directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in 
accordance with the Act and these Regulations;

9.	 The Board arranged orientation courses for its directors (as and when needed) to apprise them of their duties 
and responsibilities. One of the directors namely,  Miss. Sarah Hajra Khan  have already acquired certification 
under Director training programs conducted by Executive development center of  The University of Lahore, 
a duly approved training institution by Security and Exchange Commission of Pakistan. Four directors are 
exempted from such training as they have fourteen years of education and fifteen years of experience on the 
board of the listed company. Two directors have obtained training subsequent to the reporting date.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES 
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019 
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10.	 The Board has approved appointment of chief financial officer, company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, 
including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements 
of the Regulations. 

11.	 Chief financial officer and chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the 
Board.

12.	 The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

	 AUDIT COMMITTEE

	 Mr. Farid ud Din Ahmad (Chairman) – Independent Director
	 Mrs. Sarah Hajra Khan – Non- Executive Director
	 Mr. Malik Manzoor Hussain Hamayoon – Independent Director

	 HR AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

	 Mr. Farid ud Din Ahmad (Chairman) – Independent Director
	 Mr. Adnan Ahmed Khan – Chief Executive
	 Mr. Malik Manzoor Hussain Hamayoon – Independent Director

	 NOMINATION COMMITTEE

	 Malik Manzoor Hussain Humayoon (Chairman)
	 Mr. Farid ud Din Ahmed	

	 RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

	 Malik Manzoor Hussain Humayoon (Chairman)
	 Mr. Farid ud Din Ahmed	

13.	 The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the 
committee for compliance;

14.	 The frequency of meetings of the aforesaid committees were as per following:
	
	 a)	 Audit Committee: (6) meetings held during the year.
	 b)	 HR and Remuneration Committee: One held during the year.
	 c)	 Nomination committee – one held during the year
	 d)	 Risk Management Committee  - One held during the year

15.	 The Board has set up an effective internal audit function supervised  by a qualified Head of Internal Audit,  
who is considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with policies and 
procedures of the Company;

16.	 The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the 
quality control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit 
Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with international federation of 
accountant (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by Institute of chartered accountants of Pakistan and 
that they and partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative ( spouse, parent, dependent and 
non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company 
secretary or director of the company;

17.	 The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services 
except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have 
confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.
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18.	 We confirm that all requirements of the Regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33, and 36 of the Regulations have been 
complied with, expect for Independent director in which fraction is not rounded up as one as this “clause” was 
added in the new regulation issued on September 25, 2019, and the Board was constituted before that date 
and the Regulation has provided relaxation that for the purpose of electing independent director, the Board 
shall be reconstituted not later than expiry of its current terms.

19.	 Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8 27, 32, 33, and 36 are 
below:

	 •	 As per regulation 35, “Disclosure of significant policies on website” the Company may post 
the following on its website:

	 Key element of its significant policies

	 Brief synopsis of terms of reference of the Board Committees
	 Key element of the directors’ remuneration policy

	 However, these have not been posted on the website as Baba Farid Sugar Mills Limited has been acquired by 
new management during the year and updation of website is in progress. 

 

	 For and on behalf of Board of Directors,
	 Baba Farid Sugar Mills Limited

	 Mr. Adnan Ahmed Khan	 Mrs. Qaiser Shamim Khan
	 Chief Executive	 Chairperson

Lahore: 30 December 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Review Report
To the Members of Baba Farid Sugar Mills Limited  

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance Contained in Listed Companies 
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Baba Farid Sugar 
Mills Limited (the Company) for the year ended September 30, 2019 in accordance with the requirements 
of regulation 36 of the Regulations. 

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. 
Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s 
compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-
compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the 
Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the 
Regulations. 

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting 
and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are 
not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and 
controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate 
governance procedures and risks. 

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation 
of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party 
transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements of section 208 of the Companies Act, 
2017. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval 
of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. 
We have not carried out procedures to assess and determine the Company’s process for identification of 
related parties and that whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price or 
not. 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of 
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the 
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended September 
30, 2019.

Further we highlight below instances of non-compliance with the requirement of the regulations as reflected 
in the paragraph reference where it is stated in the statement of Compliance:

Paragraph	 Reference				    Description

	 I	 18	 Independent director in which fraction is not rounded up as “One”.
	 II	 19	 Disclosure of significant policies have not been posted on the Company website.

BDO EBRAHIM & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Engagement Partner: Muhammad Imran 

LAHORE:  DECEMBER 30, 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Baba Farid Sugar Mills Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion  

We have audited the annexed financial statements of BABA FARID SUGAR MILLS LIMITED (the 
Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at September 30, 2019, and statement 
of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of cash flows, the statement of 
changes in equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all 
the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the 
purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, 
the statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming 
part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the 
information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively 
give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at September 30, 2019 and of the loss and 
other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in 
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material uncertainty relating to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 4 to the financial statements, which indicates that the Company incurred 
a net loss of Rs. 682.625 million during the year ended September 30, 2019 and, as of that date, the 
Company’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by Rs. 604.005 million. The accumulated losses 
have exceeded the issued, subscribed and paid up capital by Rs. 2,324.241 million as at September 30, 
2019 and accumulated losses as of that date amounted to Rs. 2,418.741 million. These conditions, along 
with other matters as set forth in Note 4, indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast 
doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. However, these financial statements 
have been prepared on a going concern basis based on the sponsors’ commitment to provide financial 
support to the Company and other mitigating factors mentioned in the note 4.

Considering the mitigating factors mentioned in the note 4, these financial statements have been prepared 
on going concern basis. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our 
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters.
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Following are the Key audit matters:

Sr.No Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit
1. First time adoption of IFRS 9 Financial 

Instruments

The Company adopted IFRS 9 “Financial 
Instruments” with effect from October 1, 
2018 and this new standard supersedes the 
requirements of IAS 39 “Financial instruments 
- Recognition and Measurement”.

IFRS 9 addresses the classification, 
measurement and derecognition of financial 
assets and financial liabilities and introduces 
new rules for hedge accounting and a new 
impairment model for financial assets. 
Management has determined that the most 
significant Impact of the new standard on 
the Company financial statements relates 
to the calculation of the allowance for the 
impairment of accounts receivables.

As at September 30, 2019 the carrying value 
of accounts receivables amounted to Rs. 
77.491 million (2018: Rs. 492.485 million 
unadjusted) and the allowance for impairment 
of accounts receivables amounted to Rs. 
305.161. During the year an amount of Rs. 
12.505 million and as at October 01, 2018 
Rs. 292.656 million has been charged as 
impairment under this IFRS.

The Company assesses at each reporting 
date whether the financial assets carried 
at amortized cost are credit impaired. The 
Company’s management has applied a 
simplified expected credit loss (“ECL”) model 
to determine the allowance for impairment of 
trade receivables.

The ECL model involves the use of various 
assumptions, macro-economic factors and 
study of historical trends relating to the 
Company’s history of collection of trade 
receivables.

We considered this as key audit matter due 
to the judgements and estimates involved in 
the application of the expected credit loss 
model.

Refer to notes 6.1, 8.17, 14, and 49 to the 
financial statements for accounting policies 
and the relevant detailed disclosures, 
respectively.

We developed an understanding of the relevant 
business process and performed the following 
procedures:

•	 Specifically considered the validity of 
management’s conclusion that the main area 
of impact was in respect of trade receivables 
impairment, using our experience and 
knowledge of similar entities;

•	 Verified whether the ECL model developed 
by management is consistent with the 
requirements of IFRS 9;

•	 Tested the accuracy and completeness of 
underlying data used in the model and the 
arithmetical accuracy of the computation of 
ECL;

•	 Tested key assumptions and judgments, 
such as those used to calculate the likelihood 
of default and loss on default by comparing 
to historical data. We also considered the 
appropriateness of forward-looking factors 
(macroeconomic factors) used to determine 
expected credit losses; and

•	 Involved our accounting specialists to review 
the methodology used in the ECL model.

•	 We also reviewed the adequacy of the 
Company’s disclosures included in notes 
6.1, 8.17, 14, and 49 to the accompanying 
financial statements.
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Sr.No Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit
2. Contingencies 

As disclosed in note 32.1 to the financial 
statements, the Company is involved in 
certain legal and tax proceedings against 
the Company. The appeals were filed by the 
Company against these orders at respective 
forum. 

Management judgement is involved in 
assessing the accounting for claims, and 
in particular in considering the probability 
of a claim being successful and we have 
accordingly designated this as a focus area 
of the audit. The risk related to the claims is 
mainly associated with the completeness of 
the disclosure, and the completeness of the 
provisions in the financial statements.

No provision has been made in the financial 
statements for the liability that may arise in 
the event of a decision against the Company 
as the management is of the opinion, based 
on advice of legal and tax advisor that the 
decision is likely to be in the favor of the 
Company. 

There are significant uncertainties attached 
to the future outcome of these pending 
matters and, therefore, are considered as key 
audit matters. 

In response to the risk of completeness of 
the disclosures and the completeness of the 
provisions in the financial statements, we 
obtained external confirmations directly from 
legal and tax advisors. 

We undertook number of procedures to verify the 
appropriateness of contingencies in the financial 
statements. This included, among others:

•	 We discussed the cases with management, 
and reviewed correspondence and other 
documents exchanged between the 
Company and the other parties involved in 
the disputes. 

•	 We read the minutes of the Board meetings, 
and inspected the company’s legal 
expenses, in order to ensure all cases have 
been identified. 

•	 We tested provisions recorded in the 
accounting records, and reviewed the 
disclosures for completeness based on our 
procedures detailed above.

•	 We followed the progress of each case and 
the Company’s estimate of the cost to be 
incurred;

•	 We considered the impact on future case 
costs from changes arising in the regulatory 
environment;

•	 We obtained confirmations from legal 
advisors for current status on pending 
previous cases and any new case filed 
during the year;

•	 Checked orders by relevant authority on 
previous lawsuits / cases appearing in the 
financial statements; and

•	 Obtained legal advice on the above cases 
with the legal advisors to ensure that the 
outflow is possible and not probable.
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Sr.No Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit
3 Revenue recognition

The Company focuses on revenue as a key 
performance measure which could create 
an incentive for revenue to be recognized 
before the control of the goods have been 
transferred to customers and the customer 
can direct the use of and substantially obtain 
all the benefits from the goods, resulting in a 
significant risk associated with revenue from 
an audit perspective. 

The Company adopted IFRS 15 “Revenue 
from Contracts with Customers” with effect 
from October 1, 2018.

The adoption of new standard involved the 
exercise of a number of key judgements 
and estimates around the identification 
of transaction price as a result of variable 
consideration included therein.

Due to the significant risk associated with 
revenue recognition and the work effort from 
the audit team, the recognition of revenue is 
considered to be a key audit matter.

Refer to note 6.2 and 8.21 to the financial 
statements for accounting policies and the 
relevant detailed disclosures respectively.

Our audit procedures included considering 
the appropriateness of the Company’s revenue 
recognition accounting policies and assessing 
compliance with the policies in accordance with 
the applicable financial reporting framework. 

We developed an understanding of relevant 
business process and performed the following 
procedures:

•	 Control testing over the point of transfer 
of control of the goods to customers and 
the customers can direct the use of and 
substantially obtain all the benefits from the 
goods, was supported by substantive audit 
procedures including, amongst others: 

•	 Performing predictive analytical tests on the 
different revenue streams.

•	 Testing a sample of sales transactions 
around year end to ensure inclusion in the 
correct period.

•	 Testing of a sample of sales and trade 
receivables at year end by agreeing a sample 
of open invoices at year end to subsequent 
receipts from customers.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the annual report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, 
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of 
Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary 
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 
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 In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment 
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue 
as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters 
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should 
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a)	 proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 
(XIX of 2017);

b)	 the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive 
income, the statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity together with the notes 
thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in 
agreement with the books of account and returns;

c)	 investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the 
purpose of the Company’s business; and

d)	 in our opinion, no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII 
of 1980).

Other matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended September 30, 2018 were audited by 
another firm of chartered accountants who had expressed an unmodified opinion with emphasis of matter 
paragraph on going concern thereon vide their report dated January  04, 2019. 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Muhammad Imran.
  

BDO EBRAHIM & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

LAHORE:  DECEMBER 30, 2019
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Statement of Financial Position 
As At 30 September 2019

	 Note	 2019	 2018
		  Rupees	 Rupees
ASSETS			 
NON CURRENT ASSETS			 
Property, plant and equipment			 
Operating fixed assets	 9	  2,815,822,997 	  2,378,527,606 
Capital work in progress	 10	  7,170,132 	  117,465,019 
		   2,822,993,129 	  2,495,992,625 
Long term  deposits	 11	  -   	  587,575 
		   2,822,993,129 	  2,496,580,200 
CURRENT ASSETS			 
Stores, spares and loose tools	 12	  49,585,594 	  43,621,327 
Stock in trade	 13	  -   	  51,731,844 
Trade debts	 14	  77,491,042 	  492,485,573 
Loans and advances	 15	  15,136,357 	  109,752,981 
Short term prepayments	 16	  584,822 	  -   
Other receivables	 17	  127,260,380 	  105,742,500 
Cash and bank balances	 18	  26,379,048 	  2,220,193 
	 	  296,437,243 	  805,554,418 
TOTAL ASSETS		   3,119,430,372 	  3,302,134,618 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES			 
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES			 
Authorized share capital	 19.1	  700,000,000 	  700,000,000 
			 
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital	 19.2	  94,500,000 	  94,500,000 
Reserves			 
Revenue reserves - accumulated losses		   (2,418,741,317)	  (1,480,646,743)
Directors’ loans	 20	  1,211,500,000 	  -   
Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets	 21	  1,978,871,445 	  1,715,902,655 
	 	  866,130,128 	  329,755,912 
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES			 
Long term financing	 22	  -   	  100,000,000 
Loan from ex -holding company	 23	  -   	  500,000,000 
Loan from holding company	 24	  965,960,400 	  -   
Deferred liabilities	 25	  386,897,450 	  288,233,669 
		   1,352,857,850 	  888,233,669 
CURRENT LIABILITIES			 
Trade and other payables	 26	  609,544,364 	  619,496,337 
Unclaimed dividend		   255,930 	  255,930 
Due to ex holding company	 27	  104,066,694 	  1,154,442,231 
Temporary bank overdraft	 28	  -   	  25,982,166 
Mark-up accrued	 29	  86,562,191 	  154,058,109 
Taxation - net	 30	  13,215 	  4,910,264 
Current portion of long term liabilities	 31	  100,000,000 	  125,000,000 
		   900,442,394 	  2,084,145,037 
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS	 32		
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES		   3,119,430,372 	  3,302,134,618 
			 
The annexed notes from 1 to 59 form an integral part of these financial statements.			 

	CHIEF EXECUTIVE 	 DIRECTOR 	 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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Statement of Profit or Loss 
For the year ended 30 September 2019

	 Note	 2019	 2018
		  Rupees	 Rupees

Sales	 33	  121,607,382 	  1,381,820,573 
Cost of sales	 34	  (478,699,099)	  (1,545,649,532)

Gross loss		   (357,091,717)	  (163,828,959)
			 
Selling and distribution expenses	 35	  (471,827)	  (2,283,934)
General and administrative expenses	 36	  (30,665,594)	  (41,844,351)
Other operating expenses	 37	  (86,201,097)	  (560,000)
Other income	 38	  22,997,483 	  -   

		   (94,341,035)	  (44,688,285)

Operating loss		   (451,432,752)	  (208,517,244)
Financial charges	 39	  (176,192,506)	  (169,775,372)

Loss before taxation		   (627,625,258)	  (378,292,616)
Taxation	 40	  (54,999,835)	  4,226,425 

Loss after taxation		   (682,625,093)	  (374,066,191)
			 

Loss per share - Basic and diluted (Rupees) 	 44	 (72.24) 	 (39.58) 
			 

Appropriations have been reflected in the statement of changes in equity.			 
			 
The annexed notes from 1 to 59 form an integral part of these financial statements.	

	CHIEF EXECUTIVE 	 DIRECTOR 	 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 September 2019

		  2019	 2018
		  Rupees	 Rupees

(Loss after taxation for the year		   (682,625,093)	  (374,066,191)
Other comprehensive income			 
Items that will not be reclassified to the statement 
of profit or loss			 
			 
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability 	 25.3	  -   	  617,565 
Related tax effect		   -   	  -   

		   -   	  617,565
 
Surplus on revaluation of  operating fixed assets 	 21	  349,215,869 	  -   
Related tax effect		   (49,060,277)	  -   

		   300,155,592 	  -   

Items that may be reclassified to the statement of 
profit or loss in subsequent periods		  -   	  -   

Total comprehensive loss for the year		   (382,469,501)	  (373,448,626)
			 

The annexed notes from 1 to 59 form an integral part of these financial statements.

	CHIEF EXECUTIVE 	 DIRECTOR 	 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 September 2019
	 Note	 2019	 2018
		  Rupees	 Rupees
Cash flows from operating activities				  
Loss before tax		   (627,625,258)	  (378,292,616)
Adjustments for items not involving movement of funds:			 
   Depreciation	 9.6	  75,726,346 	  75,435,154 
   Provision for staff retirement gratuity	 25.3	  170,460 	  1,227,664 
   Gain  on sale of fixed assets	 37 & 38	  (3,622,818)	  -   
   Doubtful advances written off	 14	  65,034,841 	  -   
   Doubtful other receivable written off	 15	  7,249,736 	  -   
   Provision for doubtful debts	 36	  12,505,195 	  -   
   Liabilities written back		   (13,965,934)	  -   
   Long term deposit written off		   587,575 	  -   
   Gratuity balance written back	 25	  (3,742,680)	  -   
   Provision for obsolete stores and spares	 12	  15,041,549 	  -   
   Financial charges	 39	  176,192,506 	  169,775,372 				  
Net cash flow before working capital changes		   (296,448,482)	  (131,854,426)				  
Decrease / (increase) in current assets			 
   Stores, spares and loose tools		   (21,005,816)	  (6,349,586)
   Stock in trade		   51,731,844 	  481,302,846 
   Trade debts		   109,833,053 	  (29,955,432)
   Loans and advances		  29,581,783	  29,918,430 
   Trade deposits and short term prepayments		   (584,822)	  -   
   Other receivables		   (28,767,616)	  -   				  
				    140,788,426 	  474,916,258 
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities			 
   Trade and other payables		   2,989,673 	  (81,965,174)				  
Cash (used in) / generated from operations		   (152,670,383)	  261,096,658 
Taxes paid		   (1,810,896)	  (1,406,973)
Financial charges paid		   (243,688,424)	  (66,202,334)				  
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities		   (398,169,703)	  193,487,351 				  
Cash flows from investing activities			 
   Additions to operating fixed assets		   (2,107,171)	  (53,057,011)
   Additions to capital work in progress		   (51,666,968)	  -   				  
Net cash used in investing activities		   (53,774,139)	  (53,057,011)				  
Cash flows from financing activities			 
   Repayments of long term financing		   (100,000,000)	  (100,000,000)
   Due to ex holding company		   (1,575,375,537)	  24,194,869 
   Loan from holding company		   965,960,400 	  -   
   Directors’ contribution		   1,211,500,000 	  -   				  
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities		   502,084,863 	  (75,805,131)				  
Net increase  in cash and cash equivalents		   50,141,021 	  64,625,209 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year		   (23,761,973)	  (88,387,182)				  
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year	 42	  26,379,048 	  (23,761,973)
			
The annexed notes from 1 to 59 form an integral part of these financial statements.			 

   

	CHIEF EXECUTIVE 	 DIRECTOR 	 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 September 2019

Issued, 
subscribed 
and paid-up 

capital

Surplus on 
revaluation 

of fixed 
assets

Directors’ 
loans

Revenue 
Reserves

Total

Ordinary 
shares

Accumulated 
losses

 -----------------------------( Rupees)-----------------------------
		

Balance as at  October  1, 2017 		   94,500,000 	  1,746,005,655 	  -   	 (1,146,927,052)	  693,578,603 

Total comprehensive loss for the year 						    
    Loss for the year 		   -   	  -   	  -   	  (374,066,191)	  (374,066,191)
    Remeasurement of defined benefit 
    liability - net 		   -   	  -   	  -   	  617,565 	  617,565 
    Transfer from surplus on revaluation of						    
    fixed assets incremental depreciation-net 
    of deferred tax		   -   	  (39,728,935)	  -   	  39,728,935 	  -   
    Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 
    related to rate change		   -   	  9,625,935 	  -   	  -   	  9,625,935 

		   -   	  (30,103,000)	  -   	  (333,719,691)	  (363,822,691)

Balance as at September 30, 2018 - reported		   94,500,000 	  1,715,902,655 	  -   	 (1,480,646,743)	  329,755,912 
IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments - Impact of 
change in accounting policy	 6.1	  -   	  -   	  -   	  (292,656,283)	  (292,656,283)

Balance as at October 01, 2018 - restated		   94,500,000 	  1,715,902,655 	  -   	 (1,773,303,026)	  37,099,629 
Total comprehensive loss for the year 						    

Loss for the year 		   -   	  -   	  -   	  (682,625,093)	  (682,625,093)
Remeasurement of defined benefit  liability - net 		   -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets		   -   	  300,155,592 	  -   	  -   	  300,155,592 
Transfer from surplus on revaluation of						    
fixed assets incremental depreciation-net 
of deferred tax		   -   	  (37,186,802)	  -   	  37,186,802 	  -   
Director contribution	 20	  -   	  -   	 1,211,500,000 	  -   	 1,211,500,000 

		   -   	  262,968,790 	  1,211,500,000 	  (645,438,291)	  829,030,499 

Balance as at September 30, 2019		   94,500,000 	  1,978,871,445 	  1,211,500,000 	  (2,418,741,317)	  866,130,128 
						    

The annexed notes from 1 to 59 form an integral part of these financial statements.					   
					   

	CHIEF EXECUTIVE 	 DIRECTOR 	 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 September 2019

1.	 LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS	
		
1.1	 Baba Farid Sugar Mills Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated in 1978 under the Companies 

Act 1913 (now Companies Act, 2017) as a Public Limited Company and its shares are quoted at 
Pakistan Stock Exchange. It is principally engaged  in the manufacturing and sale of sugar  including 
its by-products i.e. molasses and V.Filter cake.	

		
1.2	 4,806,468 (2018: Nil) ordinary shares of the Company which represent 50.862% (2018: Nil) of 

the issued, subscribed and paid up share capital of the Company are held by Naubahar Bottling 
Company (Private) Limited which is incorporated / registered in Pakistan under Pakistani laws. The 
registered address of the Holding Company is 38-40 Grand Trunk Road, Industrial Estate Model 
Town, Gujranwala, Punjab. The Holding Company is engaged in the manufacturer and distributor of 
Pepsi Cola soft drinks in Pakistan. The Chief Executive of the Holding Company is Mr. Muhammad 
Shamim Khan.	

		
	 As at September 30, 2018 M/s Pattoki Sugar Mills Limited (the Ex-holding Company) holds 

7,696,072 (81.44%) shares of the Company. During the year, as explained in note 3, the shares has 
been acquired by the  Naubahar Bottling Company (Private) Limited (Holding Company) and other 
shareholders. M/s Pattoki Sugar Mills Limited has been mentioned in these financial statements as 
“Ex - holding Company”.	

		
2.	 GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION AND ADDRESSES OF BUSINESS UNITS	
		
	 The registered office of the Company is situated at 2-D/1, Gulberg III, Lahore. During the period the 

Company has changed its registered address from Suit-T-09, 3rd Floor, 75-E/1 Main Boulevard, 
Gulberg III, Lahore to 2-D/1, Gulberg III, Lahore. The manufacturing facility of the Company is 
located at 5 KM Faisalabad Road, district Okara, Punjab.	

		
3.	 ACQUISITION OF THE COMPANY	
		
	 Naubahar Bottling Company (Private) Limited, Mr. Muhammad Shamim Khan, Mrs. Qaiser Shamim 

Khan, Mr. Adnan Ahmed Khan and Mr. Nauman Ahmed Khan (the Acquirers/Sponsors/related 
parties) have entered into a Share Purchase Agreement dated 23 January 2019 with Ms. Naheed 
Rohi, Mr. Muhammad Ashraf, Mr. Muhammad Sarwar, Mr. Muhammad Shah Anjum, Ms. Rafia 
Aslam, Mr. Shahid Mehmood Qureshi, Syed Qaisar Abbas Naqvi, Mr. Maqsood Ul Hassan, Mr. 
Muhammad Aslam and Pattoki Sugar Mills Limited (collectively, the “Sponsor Sellers”) for the sale 
and purchase of 9,115,456 Ordinary Shares representing 96.46% of the total issued share capital of 
the Company, at an aggregate sale price of Rupees 474,003,712 calculated at the rate of Rs. 52 per 
share. Further, a Public Offer was made on March 27, 2019 by the Acquirers to acquire upto 167,272 
Ordinary Shares of the Company constituting 1.77% of the issued share capital of the Company at 
an offer price of Rupees 52 per Ordinary Share Pursuant To Part IX of the Securities Act, 2015 (“Act”) 
and the Listed Companies (Substantial Acquisition of Voting Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 
2017 (“Regulations”). Transaction has been completed during the year except some settlement of 
dues and vacation of charge on assets and guarantees.	

		
4.	 GOING CONCERN ASSUMPTION	
		
	 The Company incurred a net loss of Rs. 682.625 million during the period ended September 30, 2019 

and, as of that date, the Company’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by Rs. 604.005 
million. The accumulated losses have exceeded the issued, subscribed and paid up capital by Rs. 
2,324.241 million as at September 30, 2019 and accumulated losses as of that date amounted to 
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Rs. 2,418.741 million. These conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may 
cast doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. However, these financial 
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis based on the sponsor’s commitment to 
provide financial support to the Company.	

		
	 As mentioned in note 3 to these financial statements the acquisition will further bring strength, 

experience and efficiency to the  Company. Specifically, the acquisition has the potential to: 
facilitate expansion and efficient growth of business; strengthen the management and finances; and 
improve financial planning; thereby facilitating business to be carried on more advantageously and 
economically with enhanced profitability. It is expected to yield better returns to the shareholders 
and additional benefits for other stakeholders. It is expected that the Company shall become 
more financially viable in comparison to its current status. It is also expected that the Acquirers 
will have better managerial planning. Consequently, the Acquirers may be able to pass on parts 
of the expected benefits to the other stakeholders such as the Government, employees, general 
body of consumers and the society at large.  The Sponsors have appointed an experienced Board 
of Directors and professional management team to revive sugar mills operations and explore new 
markets. The Sponsors are confident that it will be able to expand the Company’s business and 
operate more efficiently and profitably. 	

		
5.	 BASIS OF PREPARATION	
		
5.1 	 Statement of compliance	
		
	 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting 

standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan 
comprise of :	

		
	 -	 International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting 

Standards Board ( IASB ) as notified under the Companies Act , 2017; and
		
	 -	 Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.
		
	 Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS 

Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act,  2017 have been 
followed.	

		
5.2	 Accounting convention	
		
	 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for 

recognition of certain staff retirement benefits at present value and as modified for fair value 
adjustment in certain fixed assets and exchange differences.	

		
	 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved financial reporting standards 

requires management to make estimates, assumptions and use judgments that effect the application 
of policies and reported amounts, of assets and liabilities and income and expenses. Estimates, 
assumptions and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and 
other factors, including reasonable expectations of future events. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognized prospectively commencing from the period of revision.	

		
	 Judgments and estimates made by the management that may have a significant risk of material 

adjustments to the financial statements in subsequent years are disclosed in note 41.	
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5.3	 Functional and presentation currency	
		
	 These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the functional and presentation 

currency for the Company.	
		
6.	 CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICES - IFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND IFRS 15 

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS	
		
6.1	 IFRS 9: Financial Instruments	
		
	 IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ was issued on July 24, 2017. This standard is adopted locally by the 

Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan through its S.R.O. 229 (I)/2019 and is effective for 
accounting period / year ending on or after June 30, 2019.	

		
	 IFRS 9 sets out requirements for recognizing and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities 

and some contracts to buy or sell non-financial items. This standard replaced IAS 39 “Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”. IFRS 9 contains three principal classification 
categories for financial assets: measured at amortized cost, fair value through OCI (FVOCI) and fair 
value through profit or loss (FVTPL). The classification of financial assets under IFRS 9 is generally 
based on the business model in which a financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flow 
characteristics. IFRS 9 eliminates the previous IAS 39 categories of held to maturity, loans and 
receivables and available for sale.	

		
	 The details of new significant accounting policies and the nature and effect of the changes to 

previous accounting policies are set out below.	
		
i.	 Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities	
		
	 IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in IAS 39 for the classification and measurement 

of financial liabilities. The adoption of IFRS 9 has not had a significant effect on the Company’s 
accounting policies related to financial liabilities.	

		
	 The revised provisions on the classification and measurement of financial assets (applicable mainly 

to trade receivables and other receivables) and financial liabilities (mainly trade creditors and interest-
bearing debt) have not affected Company’s financial information. Consequently, the comparative 
figures have not been restated on the introduction of IFRS 9.	

		
	 The accompanying note at 49 explain the original measurement categories under IAS 39 and the 

new measurement categories under IFRS 9 for each class of the Company’s financial assets and 
financial liabilities as at October 1, 2018.  These financial assets classified as ‘loans and receivables’ 
have been classified as amortised cost.	

		
ii.	 Impairment of financial assets	
		
	 In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as 

opposed to an incurred credit loss model under IAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires an 
entity to account for expected credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at each 
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer 
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are recognized. 	

		
	 The guiding principle of the expected credit loss (ECL) model is to reflect the general pattern of 

deterioration or improvement in the credit quality of financial instruments. The amount of ECLs 
recognised as a loss allowance or provision depends on the extent of credit deterioration since 
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initial recognition. Under the general approach, there are two measurement bases:	
		
	 -	 12-month ECLs (Stage 1), which applies to all items (from initial recognition) as long as there 

is no significant deterioration in credit quality.
		
	 -	 Lifetime ECLs (Stages 2 and 3), which applies when a significant increase in credit risk has 

occurred on an individual or collective basis.
		
	 The Company’s financial assets include mainly trade debts, deposits, advances, other receivables 

and bank balances.	
		
	 The Company’s trade receivables do not contain a significant financing component (as determined 

in terms of the requirements of  IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”), therefore, the 
Company is using simplified approach, that does not require the Company to track the changes 
in credit risk, but, instead, requires to recognise a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each 
reporting date.	

		
	 The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses using a 

lifetime expected credit loss provision for trade receivables. To measure expected credit losses on 
a collective basis, trade receivables are grouped based on similar credit risk and aging.	

		
	 The expected loss rates are based on the Company’s historical credit losses experienced over the 

three year period prior to the period end. The historical loss rates are then adjusted for current and 
forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the Company’s customers. The 
Company has identified the gross domestic product (GDP), unemployment rate and inflation rate as 
the key macroeconomic factors. The new impairment model applies to financial assets measured at 
amortized cost, contract assets and debt instruments classified as FVOCI, but not to investments 
in equity instruments. Under IFRS 9, credit losses are recognized earlier than IAS 39. The Company 
applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure the expected credit losses which uses a lifetime 
expected loss allowance. Management uses actual credit loss experience over past years to base 
the calculation of ECL.	

		
	 Given the Company’s good collection history with no historical loss rates / bad debts and normal 

receivable ageing, the move from an incurred loss model to ECL has not had an impact on the 
financial statements of the Company. The Company has determined that the application of IFRS 9’s 
impairment requirements at October 01, 2018 results in an additional allowance for impairment as 
follows.

		  (Rupees)
		
	 Loss allowance at September 30,  2018 under IAS 39	  -   
	 Additional impairment recognized at October 01, 2018 on:	  (292,656,283)

	 Loss allowance at October 01, 2018:	  (292,656,283)
		
	 Trade receivables as at September 30, 2018	  492,485,573 
	 Loss allowance at October 01, 2018 under IFRS 9	  (292,656,283)

	 Net receivables as at October 01, 2018	  199,829,290 
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iii.	 Transition	
		
	 The Company has used the exemption not to restate comparative periods and any adjustments on 

adoption of IFRS 9 are to be recognized in statement of changes in equity as on October 1, 2018. 	
		
	 The Company has adopted modified retrospective restatement for adopting IFRS 9 and accordingly, 

all changes arising on adoption of IFRS 9 have been adjusted at the beginning of the current year. 
The effect of change in accounting policy is as follows:

		  As reported 	 Change	 Restated 
		  as at September		  as at 01, 
		  30, 2018		  October 2018
			   Rupees
		
	 Impact on statement of financial position - trade debts	  492,485,573 	  (292,656,283)	    199,829,290 
	 Impact on statement of financial position - Deferred tax	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Impact on statement of changes in equity	  (1,480,646,743)	  (292,656,283)	  (1,773,303,026)
	 Impact on statement of profit or loss	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Impact on statement of other comprehensive income	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Impact on statement of cash flows	  -   	  -   	  -  

	 Detail accounting policies under IFRS-9 are set out in note 8.17 to the financial statements.
	
	 Deferred tax asset amounting Rs. 84.870 million on impairment loss has not been recognised in 

the financial statements as a matter of prudence as in the opinion of the management there is no 
certainty regarding realisability of the amount. 

	
6.2	 IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’
	
	 IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ is effective for accounting period beginning on 

or after July 1, 2018. This standard has replaced IAS 18 Revenue and related interpretations and it 
applies to all revenue arising from contracts with customers.

	
	 The IFRS 15 establish a five-steps mode to account for revenue arising from contracts with 

customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to 
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. 
The standard requires the entities to exercise judgment, taking in to consideration all of the relevant 
facts and circumstances when applying each step of the model to contracts with the customers. 
The Company has concluded that the impact of adoption of revenue recognition model as laid down 
in IFRS 15 is not material.

	
	 There is no material impact of transition to IFRS 15 on the financial position of the Company and 

there is no effect on the accounting policies of the Company in respect of revenue from contracts 
with customers.

	
7.	 NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED 

APPROVED STANDARDS
	
7.1	 Amendments that are effective in current year and relevant to the Company
	
	 The Company has adopted the amendments to the following approved accounting standards as 

applicable in Pakistan which became effective during the year from the dates mentioned below 
against the respective standard:
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			   Effective date 
			   (annual periods
			   beginning on or after)
		
	 Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 - Original Issue	 March 01, 2018
		
	 IFRS 2	 Share-based Payment - amendments  to clarify the 
		  classification and measurement of share-based payment 
		  transactions	 January 01, 2018
			 
	 IFRS 4	 Insurance Contracts - amendments regarding the 
		  interaction of IFRS 4 and IFRS 9	 January 01, 2018
			 
	 IFRS 5	 Additional hedge accounting disclosures (and 
		  consequential amendments) resulting from the 
		  introduction of the hedge accounting chapter in IFRS 9	 July 01, 2018
			 
	 IFRS 8	 Amendments regarding the interaction of 
		  IFRS 4 and IFRS 9	 January 01, 2018
			 
	 IFRS 7	 Financial Instruments : Disclosures - additional hedge 
		  accounting disclosures (and consequential amendments) 
		  resulting from the introduction of the hedge accounting 
		  chapter in IFRS 9	 July 01, 2018
			 
	 IFRS 9	 Financial Instruments - reissue to incorporate a hedge 
		  accounting chapter and permit the early application of 
		  the requirements for presenting in other comprehensive 
		  income the ‘own credit’ gains or losses on financial 
		  liabilities designated under the fair value option 
		  without early applying the other requirements of IFRS 9	 July 01, 2018
			 
	 IFRS 9	 Financial Instruments - finalised version, incorporating 
		  requirements for classification and measurement, 
		  impairment, general hedge accounting and derecognition	 July 01, 2018
			 
	 IFRS 15	 Original issue	 July 01, 2018
			 
	 IFRS 15	 Clarifications to IFRS 15	 July 01, 2018
			 
	 IAS 39	 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurements-
		  amendments to permit an entity to elect to continue 
		  to apply the hedge accounting requirements in IAS 39 for 
		  a fair value hedge of the interest rate exposure of a 
		  portion of a portfolio of financial assets or financial liabilities 
		  when IFRS 9 is applied, and to extend the fair value option 
		  to certain contracts that meet the ‘own use’ scope exception	 July 01, 2018
			 
	 IAS 40	 Investment Property - amendments to clarify transfers of 
		  property to, or from, investment property	 January 01, 2018
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	 Other than the amendments to standards mentioned above, there are certain annual improvements 
made to IFRS that became effective during the year:	

			   Effective date 
			   (annual periods
			   beginning on or after)
	 Annual Improvements to IFRSs (2014 – 2016) Cycle:	
		
	 IFRS 1	 First-time Adoption of International Financial 
		  Reporting Standards	 January 01, 2018
	 IAS 28	 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures	 January 01, 2018
					  
7.2	 Amendments not yet effective	
		
	 The following amendments to the approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan would 

be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard:	

			   Effective date 
			   (annual periods
			   beginning on or after)

	 Amendments to IFRS 2, IFRS 3, IFRS 6, IFRS 14, IAS 1, IAS 8, 
	 IAS 34, IAS 37, IAS 38, IFRIC 12, IFRIC 19, IFRIC 20, IFRIC 22, 
	 and SIC-32 to update these pronouncements with regard to 
	 references to and quotes from the framework or to indicate where 
	 they refer to different version of the Conceptual Framework.	 January 01, 2020
			 
	 IFRS 3	 Business Combinations - amendments to clarify the 
		  definition of a business	 January 01, 2020
			 
	 IFRS 8	 Amendments regarding prepayment features with negative 
		  compensation and modifications of financial liabilities	 January 01, 2019
			 
	 IFRS 9	 Financial Instruments - amendments regarding 
		  prepayment features with negative compensation and 
		  modifications of financial liabilities negative compensation 
		  and modifications of financial liabilities	 January 01, 2019
			 
	 IAS 1	 Presentation of Financial Statements - amendments 
		  regarding the definition of materiality	 January 01, 2020
			 
	 IAS 8 	 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates 
		  and Errors - amendments regarding the definition of materiality	 January 01, 2020
			 
	 IAS 19	 Employee benefits - amendments regarding plan 
		  amendments, curtailments or settlements	 January 01, 2019
			 
	 IAS 17	 Amendments regarding plan amendments, curtailments 
		  or settlements	 January 01, 2019
			 
	 IAS 28	 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - amendments 
		  regarding long-term interests in associates and joint ventures	 January 01, 2019
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	 The annual improvements to IFRSs that are effective from the dates mentioned below against 
respective standards:	

			   Effective date 
			   (annual periods
			   beginning on or after)
	 Annual improvements to IFRSs (2015 – 2017) Cycle:	
		
	 IFRS 3	 Business Combinations	 January 01, 2019
	 IFRS 11	 Joint Arrangements	 January 01, 2019
	 IAS 12	 Income Taxes 	 January 01, 2019
	 IAS 23	 Borrowing Costs	 January 01, 2019
		
7.3	 Standards or interpretations not yet effective	
		
	 The following new standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board 

(IASB), which have been adopted locally by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 
effective from the dates mentioned against the respective standard:	

		
	 IFRS 16	 Leases	 January 01, 2019

	 The effects of IFRS 16 - Leases are still being assessed, as these new standards may have a 
significant effect on the Company’s future financial statements.	

		
	 The following new standards and interpretations have been issued by the International Accounting 

Standards Board (IASB), which have not been adopted locally by the Securities and Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan (SECP):	

		
	 IFRS 1	 First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
	 IFRS 14	 Regulatory Deferral Accounts
	 IFRS 17	 Insurance Contracts	
		
	 The Company expects that the adoption of the other amendments and interpretations of the 

standards will not have any material impact and therefore will not affect the Company’s financial 
statements in the period of initial application.	

		
8.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES	
		
	 The principal accounting policies applied in the presentation of these financial statements are set out 

below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented except as disclosed 
in note 6.1 and 6.2 to these financial statements.	

		
8.1 	 Property, plant and equipment	
		
a)	 Owned assets	
		
	 These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if 

any, except for freehold land, buildings on freehold land, and plant & machinery which is carried at 
revalued amount and capital work-in-progress which is stated at cost less impairment losses. 	

		
	 Depreciation is charged on all fixed assets by applying the reducing balance method at the rates 

specified in note 9. The rates are determined to allocate the cost of an asset less estimated residual 
value, if not insignificant, over its useful life.	
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	 Depreciation on assets is charged from the month of addition while no depreciation is charged for 
the month in which assets are disposed off.	

		
	 Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of fixed assets is recognised, net of tax, in 

other comprehensive income and accumulated revaluation surplus in shareholders’ equity and value 
of fixed assets. If an assets’ carrying amount is increased as a result of revaluation, the increase 
will be recognized in other comprehensive income. However, the increase shall be recognized in 
profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously 
recognized in profit or loss. If an assets’ carrying amount is decreased as a result of revaluation, the 
decrease shall be recognized in profit or loss. However, the decrease shall be recognized in other 
comprehensive income to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in 
respect of that assets.	

		
	 Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to income as and when incurred while cost of major 

replacements and improvements, if any, are capitalized.	
		
	 Gains and losses on disposal and retirement of an asset are included in the the statement of profit 

or loss.	
		
	 Surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets	
		
	 Surplus arising on revaluation is credited to surplus on revaluation of property plant and equipment. 

This surplus on revaluation, to the extent of incremental depreciation is transferred to accumulated 
profit, net of deferred tax.	

		
b)	 Leased assets	
		
	 Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Company has substantially all the risks and 

rewards of ownership are classified as finance lease. Assets subject to finance lease are stated 
at the lower of present value of minimum lease payments under the lease agreement and the fair 
value of the assets acquired on lease. Outstanding obligations under the lease less finance charges 
allocated to future periods are shown as liability. Finance costs under lease agreements are allocated 
to the period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of financial cost on the 
remaining balance of principal liability for each period.	

		
	 Assets acquired under a finance lease are depreciated over the useful life of the asset on reducing 

balance method at the rates given in note 9. Depreciation on leased assets is charged to the the 
statement of profit or loss.	

		
	 Depreciation on additions to leased assets is charged from the month in which an asset is acquired 

while no depreciation is charged for the month in which asset is disposed off.	
		
c)	 Capital work in progress	
		
	 Capital work-in-progress are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any, and consists of expenditure 

incurred, advances made and other costs directly attributable to operating fixed assets in the course 
of their construction and installation. Cost also includes applicable borrowing costs. Transfers are 
made to relevant operating fixed assets category as and when assets are available for use intended 
by the management.	

		
d)	 Impairment of non-financial assets	
		
	 The carrying amount of the Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each statement of 

financial position date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indications 
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exist, the assets’ recoverable amounts are estimated in order to determine the extent of impairment 
loss, if any.	

		
	 An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit 

exceeds its recoverable amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that 
generates cash flows that is largely independent from other assets and group. Impairment losses 
are recognized as expense in the statement of profit or loss. The recoverable amount is the higher of 
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the 
depreciation charge is adjusted in the future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount 
over its estimated useful life.	

		
	 Impaired assets are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each statement of financial 

position date. Reversal of the impairment losses are restricted to the extent that asset’s carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, 
if no impairment losses had been recognized. A reversal of impairment loss is recognized in the the 
statement of profit or loss.	

		
8.2 	 Intangible assets	
		
	 Costs that are directly associated with identifiable software products controlled by the Company 

and have probable economic benefits beyond one year are recognized as intangible assets. These 
are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. Amortization is 
provided on a straight line basis over the asset’s estimated useful lives.	

		
8.3 	 Investment property	
		
	 Investment property is property which is held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation 

or for both. Investment property is initially recognized at cost, being the fair value of the consideration 
given. Subsequent to initial recognition investment property is carried at fair value. The fair value is 
determined annually by an independent approved valuer. The fair values is based on  market value 
being the estimated amount for which a property could be exchanged on the date of valuation 
between knowledgeable and willing buyer and seller in an arms length transaction.	

		
	 Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value is recognized in the income statement. 	
		
	 Rental income from investment property is accounted for as described in note 8.21.	
		
	 When an item of property, plant and equipment is transferred to investment property following a 

change in its use, differences arising at the date of transfer between the carrying amount of the item 
immediately prior to transfer and its fair value is recognized in surplus on revaluation of property, 
plant and equipment, if it is a gain. Upon disposal of the item the related surplus on revaluation of 
property, plant and equipment is transferred to retained earnings. Any loss arising in this manner is 
recognized immediately in the income statement. 	

		
	 For a transfer from inventories to investment property that will be carried at fair value any difference 

between the fair value of the property at that date and its previous carrying amount shall be 
recognized in the income statement.	

		
	 If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as property, plant and equipment 

and its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.	
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8.4	 Investment in associates	
		
	 Investment in associates where the Company holds 20% or more of the voting power of the investee 

companies and where significant influence can be established are accounted for using the equity 
method. Investment in associates other than those described as above are classified as “Fair value 
through OCI”.	

		
	 In case of investments accounted for under the equity method, the method is applied from the date 

when significant influence is established until the date when that significant influence ceases. 	
		
8.5	 Investments in subsidiary	
		
	 Investment in unquoted subsidiary is initially valued at cost. At subsequent reporting dates, the 

Company reviews the carrying amount of the investment to assess whether there is any indication 
that such investments have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable 
amount is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. 	

		
8.6	 Stores, spares and loose tools	
		
	 These are valued at lower of weighted average cost and net realizable value less impairment, if any, 

except for items in transit, which are valued at cost comprising of invoice value plus other charges 
paid thereon till the statement of financial position date. The Company reviews the carrying amount 
of stores and spares on a regular basis and provision is made for obsolescence if there is any 
change in usage pattern and physical form of related stores, spares and loose tools. For items which 
are slow moving and / or identified as surplus to the company’s requirements, adequate provision is 
made for any excess book value over estimated realisable value.	

		
	 Spares parts of capital nature which can be used only in connection with an item of property, plant 

and equipment are classified as tangible fixed assets under the plant and machinery category and 
are depreciated on over a time period not exceeding the useful life of related assets.	

		
8.7	 Stock-in-trade	
		
	 These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined as follows:	
		
	 Raw and packing materials -	 Weighted average cost		
	 Materials in transit	 -	 Invoice value plus other expenses incurred thereon
	 Work in process	 -	 Cost of material as above plus proportionate production overheads
	 Finished goods 	 -	 Average cost of manufacture which includes proportionate production 
			   overheads including duties and taxes paid  thereon, if any.
	 By products	 -	 At net realizable value	
	
	 Adequate provision is made for slow moving and obsolete items.	
		
	 Net realizable value represents the estimated selling prices in the ordinary course of business less 

expenses incidental to make the sale. 	
		
8.8	 Trade debts and other receivables	
		
	 Trade  debts and other receivables are  recognized  and  carried at original invoiced amount which is 

the fair value of the consideration to be received in future for goods sold less provision for doubtful 
amounts. Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the 
gross carrying amount of the assets. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off 
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when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or 
a portion thereof.	

		
8.9	 Taxation	
		
a)	 Current	
		
	 The charge for current year is higher of the amount computed on taxable income at the current rates 

of taxation after taking into account tax credits and rebates, if any, and minimum tax computed at 
the prescribed rate on turnover or alternative corporate tax. The charge for current tax also includes 
adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years arising from 
assessments framed during the year for such years. 	

		
b)	 Deferred	
		
	 Deferred tax is provided using the liability method for all temporary differences at the balance sheet 

date between tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting 
purposes. In this regard, the effects on deferred taxation of the portion of income subject to final 
tax regime is also considered in accordance with the requirement of Technical Release - 27 of the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.	

		
	 Deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences and carry forward of unused 

tax losses, if any, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which 
such temporary differences and tax losses can be utilised.	

		
	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the 

period when the assets are realised or the liabilities are settled, based on tax rates that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is charged or credited to 
the the statement of profit or loss, except in case of items charged or credited directly to equity in 
which case it is included in the statement of comprehensive income.	

		
8.10	 Borrowings	
		
	 Loans and borrowings are recorded at the proceeds received. Finance cost are accounted for on 

accrual basis and are shown as interest and mark-up accrued to the extent of the amount remaining 
unpaid.	

		
	 Short term borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has unconditional 

right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the balance sheet date.	
		
	 Borrowing cost on long term finances and short term borrowings which are obtained for the 

acquisition of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs 
are charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which these are incurred. Borrowing 
cost also includes exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that 
they are regarded as an adjustment to interest cost as allowed under IAS 23 “Borrowing cost”.	

		
8.11	 Trade and other payables	
		
	 Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the 

consideration to be paid in the future for goods and services received.	
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8.12	 Provisions	
		
	 Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a 

result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits 
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions 
are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.	

		
8.13 	 Leases	
		
	 Finance lease	
		
	 Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset is 

classified as finance lease. Assets on finance lease are capitalised at the commencement of the 
lease term at the lower of the fair value of leased assets and the present value of minimum lease 
payments. Finance costs under lease arrangements are allocated to the periods during the lease 
term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of finance cost on the remaining balance of principal 
liability for each period.	

		
	 Operating lease / Ijarah	
		
	 Operating lease / ijarah in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are 

retained by the lessor / Muj’ir (lessor) are classified as operating leases/Ijarah. Payments made 
during the period are charged to profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease 
/ Ijarah.	

		
	 The SECP has issued directive (vide SRO 431(I)/2007 dated May 22, 2007) that Islamic Financial 

Accounting Standard 2 (IFAS-2) shall be followed in preparation of the financial statements by 
companies while accounting for Ijarah (Lease) transactions as defined by said Standard. The 
Company has adopted the above said standard.	

		
8.14	 Cash and bank balances	
		
	 Cash in hand and at banks are carried at nominal amount.	
		
8.15	 Cash and cash equivalents	
		
	 For the purposes of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand, 

cheques in hand and balances with banks net of borrowings not considered as being in the nature 
of financing activities.	

		
8.16	 Dividend and appropriation to reserve	
		
	 Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognized as a liability in the Company’s 

financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved.	
		
8.17	 Financial instruments	
		
8.17.1	Financial assets	
		
	 The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through profit 

or loss, fair value through other comprehensive income and amortized cost. The classification 
depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the 
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. All the financial assets of the Company as 
at statement of financial position date are carried at amortized cost.	
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	 Amortized cost	
		
	 A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both the following conditions and is not 

designated as at fair value through profit or loss:	
		
	 -	 it is held with in a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual 

cash flows; and
		
	 -	 its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
		
	 Debt Instrument - FVOCI	
		
	 A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 

designated as at FVTPL:	
		
	 -	 it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual 

cash flows and selling financial assets;
		
	 -	 its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
		
	 These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income calculated using the effective 

interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in profit or loss. 
Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated 
in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.	

		
	 Equity Instrument - FVOCI	
		
	 On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably 

elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI. This election is made on 
an investment-by-investment basis.	

		
	 These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income in profit 

or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other 
net gains and losses are recognized in OCI and are never reclassified to profit or loss.	

		
	 Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)	
		
	 All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are 

measured at FVTPL.	
		
	 On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets 

the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates 
or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.	

		
	 These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest 

or dividend income, are recognized in profit or loss.	
		
	 Impairment	
		
	 The Company recognizes loss allowances for ECLs on:	
		
	 -	 financial assets measured at amortized cost;
	 -	 debt investments measured at FVOCI; and
	 -	 contract assets.
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	 The Company recognizes loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs), except for the 
following, which are measured at 12-month ECLs, on financial assets measured at amortized cost 
and contract assets. The Company measures loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. 	

		
	 -	 debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and
	 -	 other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring 

over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial 
recognition.

		
	 12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 

12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less 
than 12 months).	

		
	 Lifetime ECLs are those that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial 

instrument. The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual 
period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.	

		
	 At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether the financial assets carried at amortized 

cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have 
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have occurred.	

		
	 Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross 

carrying amount of the assets. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the 
Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion 
thereof. 	

		
	 When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since 

initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable 
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative 
and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical  experience and 
informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.	

		
	 The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure the expected credit losses which 

uses a lifetime expected loss allowance. Loss allowances for trade receivables and contract assets 
are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result 
from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. Management uses 
actual credit loss experience over a past years to base the calculation of ECL.	

		
	 At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost 

and debt securities at FVOCI are credit impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or 
more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset 
have occurred.	

		
8.17.2	Financial liabilities	
		
	 All financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of the instrument.	
		
8.17.3	Recognition and measurement 	
		
	 All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the 

consideration given and received respectively. These financial assets and liabilities are subsequently 
measured at fair value, amortized cost or cost, as the case may be. The particular measurement 
methods adopted  are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with each item. 	
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8.17.4	 Derecognition	
		
	 The financial assets are de-recognized when the Company loses control of the contractual rights that 

comprise the financial assets. The financial liabilities are de-recognized when they are extinguished 
i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.	

		
8.18	 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities	
		
	 A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet 

if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and intends either 
to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.	

		
8.19	 Foreign currency transactions and translation	
		
	 Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the rates of exchange 

approximating those prevailing on the date of transactions or at the contract rate. Monetary 
assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the rates of exchange 
approximating those prevailing at the balance sheet date or at the contract rate. Exchange gains 
and losses are included in the statement of profit or loss currently.	

		
8.20	 Employee benefits	
		
	 The Company’s employees benefits comprise of gratuity scheme and compensated absences for 

eligible employees.	
		
8.20.1	 Staff retirement benefits	
		
	 Defined benefit plan (Gratuity Fund)	
		
	 The Company operates an un-funded gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees who have 

attained retirement age, died or resigned during service period and have served for the minimum 
qualification period. Provision is based on the actuarial valuation of the scheme carried out as at 
September 30, 2019 using the Projected Unit Credit Method in accordance with IAS-19 “Employee 
Benefits” and resulting vested portion of past service cost has been charged to income in the 
current year. The remeasurement gains / losses as per actuarial valuation done at financial year end 
are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income and all other expenses are  recognized 
in accordance with IAS 19 “Employee Benefits” in the statement of profit or loss. 	

		
8.20.2	 Compensated absences	
		
	 The Company accounts for these benefits in the period in which the absences are earned.	
		
8.21	 Revenue recognition	
		
	 Revenue comprises the fair value for the sale of goods net of sales taxes and discounts. Revenue 

from the sale of goods is recognized when control of the goods passes to customers and the 
customers can direct the use of and substantially obtain all the benefits from the goods.

	
	 Revenue is recognized when specific criteria have been met for each of the Company’s activities as 

described below.	
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	 Revenue from contracts with customers	
		
	 Sale of goods	
		
	 -	 Sale of goods is recognized when the Company has transferred control of the products 

to the customers and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s 
acceptance of the products. 

		
	 Contract assets	
		
	 Contract assets arise when the Company performs its performance obligations by transferring 

goods to a customer before the customer pays its consideration or before payment is due.	
		
	 Contract liabilities	
		
	 Contract liability is the obligation of the Company to transfer goods to a customer for which the 

Company has received consideration from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before 
the Company transfers goods, a contract liability is recognized when the payment is made. Contract 
liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs its performance obligations under 
the contract.	

		
	 Others	
		
	 -	 Scrap sales are recognized on delivery to customers at realized amounts.

	 -	 Return on deposit is accrued on time proportion basis by reference to the principle 
outstanding and the applicable rate of return.

	 -	 Rental income is recognized on accrual basis.

	 -	 All other income is recognized on accrual basis.

	 -	 Dividend on equity investments is recognized as income when the right to receive payment 
is established.

		
8.22	 Related party transactions	
		
	 Transactions and contracts with the related parties are based on the policy that all transactions 

between the Company and related parties are carried out at an arm’s length. These prices are 
determined in accordance with the methods prescribed in the Companies Act, 2017.	

		
8.23	 Borrowing costs	
		
	 Interest and commitment charges on long term loans are capitalized for the period up to the date 

of commencement of commercial production of the respective plant and machinery acquired out of 
the proceeds of such loans. All other interest and charges are treated as expenses during the year.	

		
8.24	 Segment reporting	
		
	 An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from 

which it may earn revenues and incur expenses including revenues and expenses that relate to 
transactions with any of the Company’s other components. All operating segments’ results are 
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reviewed regularly by the Company’s chief operating decision maker to make decisions about 
resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete 
financial information is available. The Company has only one reportable segment. 	

		
8.25	 Contingencies	
		
	 A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past 

events, existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or 
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or the Company has a 
present legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is not probable that an 
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or the 
amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.	

		
8.26	 Share capital	
		
	 Share capital is classified as equity and recognized at the face value. Incremental costs, net of tax, 

directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown as a deduction in equity.	
		
8.27	 Earnings per share	
		
	 The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. 

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the 
Company by weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS 
is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted 
average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary 
shares.	
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9.	 OPERATING FIXED ASSETS				  
	

	 The following is the statement of property, plant and equipment:

	

Description Freehold 
land

Buildings 
on 

freehold 
land

Plant and 
machinery

Electric 
installation

Tools and 
equipment Vehicles

Furniture 
and 

fixtures                

Office 
and  other 

equipments  
Total

(Rupees)

				  
	 Net carrying value basis									       
	 year ended September 30, 2019									       
	 Opening net book value (NBV)	  1,080,150,000 	  154,429,539 	  1,137,582,296 	  498,208 	  821,563 	  767,241 	  529,045 	  3,749,714 	  2,378,527,606 
	 Additions / Transfer (at cost)	  -   	  -   	  162,324,157 	  -   	  114,000 	  -   	  219,249 	  1,411,620 	  164,069,026 
	 Revaluation during the year	  180,042,500 	  134,522,415 	  34,650,954 						       349,215,869 
	 Disposals (NBV)	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  (263,158)	  -   	  -   	  (263,158)
	 Depreciation charge	  -   	  (15,442,954)	  (59,557,407)	  (49,821)	  (83,106)	  (100,817)	  (61,450)	  (430,791)	  (75,726,346)

	 Closing net book value 	  1,260,192,500 	  273,509,000 	  1,275,000,000 	  448,387 	  852,457 	  403,266 	  686,844 	  4,730,543 	  2,815,822,997 
										        
	 Gross carrying value basis									       
	 year ended September 30, 2019									       
	 Cost/revalue	  1,260,192,500 	  487,635,689 	  2,187,972,112 	  9,681,095 	  4,394,715 	  11,351,282 	  6,002,811 	  15,694,096 	  3,982,924,300 
	 Accumulated depreciation	  -   	  (214,126,689)	  (912,972,112)	  (9,232,708)	  (3,542,258)	  (10,948,016)	  (5,315,967)	  (10,963,553)	  (1,167,101,303)

	 Net book value	  1,260,192,500 	  273,509,000 	  1,275,000,000 	  448,387 	  852,457 	  403,266 	  686,844 	  4,730,543 	  2,815,822,997 
										        
	 Net carrying value basis									       
	 year ended September 30, 2018									       
	 Opening net book value (NBV)	  1,080,150,000 	  171,588,377 	  1,142,467,588 	  553,564 	  912,848 	  935,018 	  587,828 	  3,710,526 	  2,400,905,749 
	 Additions (at cost)	  -   	  -   	  52,598,604 	  -   	  -   	  23,284 	  -   	  435,123 	  53,057,011 
	 Adjustment against land during year 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Revaluation	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Disposals / transfers (NBV)                                 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Depreciation charge 	  -   	  (17,158,838)	  (57,483,896)	  (55,356)	  (91,285)	  (191,061)	  (58,783)	  (395,935)	  (75,435,154)

	 Closing net book value 	  1,080,150,000 	  154,429,539 	  1,137,582,296 	  498,208 	  821,563 	  767,241 	  529,045 	  3,749,714 	  2,378,527,606 
										        
	 Gross carrying value basis									       
	 year ended September 30, 2018									       
	 Cost/revalue	  1,080,150,000 	  353,113,274 	  1,990,997,001 	  9,681,095 	  4,280,715 	  15,178,282 	  5,783,562 	  14,282,476 	  3,473,466,405 
	 Accumulated depreciation	  -   	  (198,683,735)	  (853,414,705)	  (9,182,887)	  (3,459,152)	  (14,411,041)	  (5,254,517)	  (10,532,762)	  (1,094,938,799)

	 Net book value	  1,080,150,000 	  154,429,539 	  1,137,582,296 	  498,208 	  821,563 	  767,241 	  529,045 	  3,749,714 	  2,378,527,606 
										        

	 Depreciation rate % per annum	 -	 10	 5	 10	 10	 20	 10	 10	

9.1 	 Free hold land of the Company is located at  5-km Faisalabad Road, District Okara, Punjab with 
an area covering 72.011 acres (2018: 72.011). The building on freehold land and other immovable 
assets of the Company are constructed/located at above mentioned freehold land and address.		
	

9.2 	 Plant and machinery includes transfer from capital work-in-progress amounting to Rs. 161.961 
million (2018: Nil).

9.3 	 Free hold land, buildings, plant & machinery  were revalued by   independent valuers  M/s. Tristar 
International Consultants (Private) Limited as at September 30, 2019  on the basis of market value. 
The revaluation resulted in surplus aggregating to Rs. 349.215 million. Had there been no revaluation 
on that date, the book value of operating fixed assets would have been lower by Rs. 1,978.871 
million (2018: Rs.  1,715.903 million). 			 

				  
9.4 	 Had there been no revaluation, the net book value of the assets as at September 30, 2019 would 

have been as under.			 
	 Note	 2019	 2018
		  Rupees	 Rupees
				  
	 Land		   7,959,798 	  7,959,798 
	 Building		   12,196,121 	  13,551,245 
	 Plant and machinery		   512,878,031 	  371,823,333 

			    533,033,950 	  393,334,376 
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9.5 	 The forced sale value of free hold land, building and plant & machinery is Rs. 1,071.163 million, 
218.807 million and 956.250 million, respectively.			 

				  
9.6 	 The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:
			 
	 Note	 2019	 2018
		  Rupees	 Rupees

	 Cost of sales	 34	  75,050,182 	  74,789,375 
	 General and administrative expenses	 36	  676,164 	  645,779
 
			    75,726,346 	  75,435,154

9.7	 The following operating fixed assets were disposed off during the year: 

	 Description	 Cost	 Accumulated	 Net	 Adjustments	 Gain / 	 Mode of	 Particulars of buyers
			   depreciation	 Book	 (Note 9.7)	 (Loss)	 disposal	
				    value
				    (Rupees)						    
	 Vehicles							     
	 Tractor-OKA-7792	  175,000 	  174,765 	  235 	  246,250 	  246,015 	 Negotiation	  Aleem Akbar 
	 Tractor-OKA-7796	  175,000 	  174,765 	  235 	  246,250 	  246,015 	 Negotiation	  Aleem Akbar 
	 Tractor-OKA-7794	  65,000 	  64,913 	  87 	  246,250 	  246,163 	 Negotiation	  Aleem Akbar 
	 Tractor-OKA-7793	  180,000 	  179,698 	  302 	  246,250 	  245,948 	 Negotiation	  Aleem Akbar 
	 Tractor-OKA-7797	  175,000 	  174,707 	  293 	  246,250 	  245,957 	 Negotiation	  Aleem Akbar 
	 Tractor-OKA-8805	  175,000 	  174,707 	  293 	  246,250 	  245,957 	 Negotiation	  Aleem Akbar 
	 Tractor-OKA-8802	  175,000 	  174,707 	  293 	  246,250 	  245,957 	 Negotiation	  Aleem Akbar 
	 Tractor-OKA-5156	  800,000 	  752,354 	  47,646 	  246,250 	  198,604 	 Employee 
							       settlement	  Faizan Farukh Lashari 
	 Trolley 8 Wheeler	  460,000 	  459,535 	  465 	  710,909 	  710,444 	 Negotiation	  Muhammad Javaid 
	 Trolley 8 Wheeler	  200,000 	  199,732 	  268 	  309,091 	  308,823 	 Negotiation	  Muhammad Javaid 
	 Motorcycle-OK-6354	  20,000 	  19,945 	  55 	  5,429 	  5,374 	 Negotiation	 Ishtiaq Parvez S/O Muhammad Yaqoob 
	 Motorcycle-OKB-1432	  20,000 	  19,945 	  55 	  5,429 	  5,374 	 Negotiation	 Ishtiaq Parvez S/O Muhammad Yaqoob 
	 Motorcycle-OKB-1433	  20,000 	  19,945 	  55 	  5,429 	  5,374 	 Negotiation	 Ishtiaq Parvez S/O Muhammad Yaqoob 
	 Motorcycle-OKA-6351	  18,000 	  17,974 	  26 	  5,429 	  5,403 	 Negotiation	 Ishtiaq Parvez S/O Muhammad Yaqoob 
	 Motorcycle-OKB-7130	  30,000 	  29,797 	  203 	  5,429 	  5,226 	 Negotiation	 Ishtiaq Parvez S/O Muhammad Yaqoob 
	 Motorcycle-OKD-6929	  46,000 	  44,145 	  1,855 	  5,429 	  3,574 	 Negotiation	 Ishtiaq Parvez S/O Muhammad Yaqoob 
	 Motorcycle-OKD-7030	  46,000 	  44,145 	  1,855 	  5,429 	  3,574 	 Negotiation	 Ishtiaq Parvez S/O Muhammad Yaqoob
	 Motorcycle-OKD-1431	  46,000 	  44,145 	  1,855 	  5,429 	  3,574 	 Negotiation	 Ishtiaq Parvez S/O Muhammad Yaqoob
	 Motorcycle-OK-1429	  20,000 	  19,945 	  55 	  5,429 	  5,374 	 Negotiation	 Ishtiaq Parvez S/O Muhammad Yaqoob
	 Motorcycle-OKB-6352	  20,000 	  19,945 	  55 	  5,429 	  5,374 	 Negotiation	 Ishtiaq Parvez S/O Muhammad Yaqoob
	 Motorcycle-OK-1430	  20,000 	  19,945 	  55 	  5,429 	  5,374 	 Negotiation	 Ishtiaq Parvez S/O Muhammad Yaqoob
	 Motorcycle-OK-8326	  21,000 	  20,963 	  37 	  5,429 	  5,392 	 Negotiation	 Ishtiaq Parvez S/O Muhammad Yaqoob
	 Motorcycle-OK-7030	  50,000 	  46,850 	  3,150 	  5,429 	  2,279 	 Negotiation	 Ishtiaq Parvez S/O Muhammad Yaqoob
	 Motorcycle-OKD-1431	  50,000 	  46,850 	  3,150 	  5,429 	  2,279 	 Negotiation	 Ishtiaq Parvez S/O Muhammad Yaqoob
	 Motorcycle-LEV-7510	  68,500 	  54,135 	  14,365 	  68,508 	  54,143 	 Employee Settlement	 Nazar Hussain
	 Motorcycle-LEP-5342	  68,500 	  54,135 	  14,365 	  68,508 	  54,143 	 Employee Settlement	 Syed Irfan Ali
	 Motorcycle-LEP-7560	  68,500 	  54,135 	  14,365 	  68,500 	  54,135 	 Employee Settlement	 Abdul Haq
	 Motorcycle-LEV-7553	  68,500 	  54,135 	  14,365 	  68,500 	  54,135 	 Employee Settlement	 Muhammad Akram
	 Motorcycle-LEV-7685	  68,500 	  54,135 	  14,365 	  68,508 	  54,143 	 Employee Settlement	 Umer Farooq
	 Motorcycle-LEV-7524	  68,500 	  54,135 	  14,365 	  68,500 	  54,135 	 Employee Settlement	 Mazar Iqbal
	 Motorcycle-LEQ-2278	  68,500 	  54,135 	  14,365 	  68,500 	  54,135 	 Employee Settlement	 Muhammad Sarwar
	 Motorcycle-LEP-5381	  68,500 	  54,135 	  14,365 	  68,500 	  54,135 	 Employee Settlement	 Abdul Rauf
	 Motorcycle-LEV-7594	  68,500 	  54,135 	  14,365 	  68,500 	  54,135 	 Employee Settlement	 Rana Mushtaq Ahmad
	 Motorcycle-LEV-7647	  68,500 	  54,135 	  14,365 	  68,500 	  54,135 	 Employee Settlement	 Nabeel Amjad
	 Motorcycle-LEV-7564	  68,500 	  54,135 	  14,365 	  68,500 	  54,135 	 Employee Settlement	 Hassan Tariq
	 Motorcycle-LEV-1784	  66,500 	  23,935 	  42,565 	  66,446 	  23,881 	 Employee Settlement	 Shafqat cheema

	 Total - 2019	  3,827,000 	  3,563,842 	  263,158 	  3,885,976 	  3,622,818 		

	 Total - 2018	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   		

					   
	

9.8	 Proceeds/adjustment against these assets has been adjusted against payable balances of these 
parties.

9.9	 Fair value measurement (revalued property, plant and equipment)			 
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9.9.1	 Fair value measurement of free hold land is based on the valuations carried out by an independent 
valuer M/s. Tristar International Consultants (Private) Limited as at September 30, 2019 on the basis 
of market value.			 

				  
9.9.2	 Fair value measurement of revalued land is based on assumptions considered to be level 2 inputs.		

	
9.9.3	 Valuation techniques used to derive level 2 fair values - Land			 
				  
	 Fair value of land has been derived using a sales comparison approach. Sale prices of comparable 

land in close proximity are adjusted for differences in key attributes such as location and size of the 
property. The most significant input in this valuation approach is price / rate per canal in particular 
locality. This valuation is considered to be level 2 in fair value hierarchy due to significant observable 
inputs used in the valuation.			 

				  
		  2019	 2018
		  Rupees	 Rupees
10.	 CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS			 
				  
	 This comprises of:			 
	     Building		   6,282,560 	  6,282,560 
	     Plant and machinery		   887,572 	  111,182,459 

				     7,170,132 	  117,465,019 
				  
		  Building	 Plant and	 Total
			   machinery				  
		  Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees
10.1 	 Movement of carrying amount			 
				  
	 Year ended September 30, 2019
			 
	 Opening balance	  6,282,560 	  111,182,459 	  117,465,019 
	 Additions (at cost)	  -   	  51,666,968 	  51,666,968 
	 Transferred to operating fixed assets	  -   	  (161,961,855)	  (161,961,855)

	 Closing balance	  6,282,560 	  887,572 	  7,170,132 
				  
	 Year ended September 30, 2018
			 
	 Opening balance	  6,282,560 	  31,894,571 	  38,177,131 
	 Additions (at cost)	  -   	  79,287,888 	  79,287,888 
	 Transferred to operating fixed assets	  -   	  -   	  -   

	 Closing balance	  6,282,560 	  111,182,459 	  117,465,019 
				  
10.2	 Building consists of construction of sugar godown, which is still under construction and expected 

to be completed on August 31, 2020. 			 
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	 Note	 2019	 2018
		  Rupees	 Rupees
11.	 LONG TERM DEPOSITS			 
				  
	    Long term deposit	 11.1	  -   	  587,575 
				  
11.1	 Movement of carrying amount			 
				  
	 Opening balance		   587,575 	  587,575 
	 Written off during the year	 11.2	  (587,575)	  -   

				     -   	  587,575 
				  
11.2	 Long term deposits have been written off during the year as there is no chance of recoveries of 

these deposits being as doubtful.			 
				  
12.	 STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS			 
				  
	 Stores 			 
	       in hand	 12.1	  28,047,322 	  19,068,626 
	       in  transit		   -   	  -   

				     28,047,322 	  19,068,626 
	 Spares:			 
	       in hand	 12.1	  36,061,783 	  24,304,850 
	       in  transit		   -   	  -   

				     36,061,783 	  24,304,850 

				     64,109,105 	  43,373,476 
	 Loose  tools		   518,038 	  247,851 
	 Less: Provision for obsolete stores and spares	 12.2	  (15,041,549)	  -   

				     49,585,594 	  43,621,327 
				  
12.1	 Stores and spares also include items which may result in capital expenditure but are not 

distinguishable at the time of purchase. However, the stores and spares consumption resulting in 
capital expenditure are capitalized in cost of respective assets.			 

		  		
12.2	 Movement of provision for obsolete stores and spares			 
				  
	 Opening balance		   -   	  -   
	 Provision during the year		   15,041,549 	  -   
	 Reversal during the year		   -   	  -   
	 Written off during the year		   -   	  -   

				     15,041,549 	  -   
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	 Note	 2019	 2018
		  Rupees	 Rupees
13.	 STOCK IN TRADE			 
				  
	 Work in process			 
	     - Sugar	 34	  -   	  31,895,978 
	     - Molasses		   -   	  1,970,542 

				     -   	  33,866,520 
	 Finished Goods			 
	     - Sugar	 34	  -   	  235,171 
	     - Molasses		   -   	  -   
	     - V.F Cake		   -   	  17,630,153 

				     -   	  51,731,844 
14.	 TRADE DEBTS			 
				  
	    Unsecured			 
	       Considered good 		   77,491,042 	  492,485,573 
	       Considered doubtful	 14.1	  305,161,478 	  -   

				     382,652,520 	  492,485,573 
	     Less: Provision for doubtful debts 	 14.1	  (305,161,478)	  -   

				     77,491,042 	  492,485,573 

14.1 	 Movement of provision for doubtful debts is as follows:			 

	 Opening balance		   -   	  -   
	 IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments - Impact of change 
	 in accounting policy (Note 6.1)		  292,656,283 	  -   

	 Balance as at October 1, 2018		   292,656,283 	  -   
	 Adjustment on account of:			 
	       Doubtful debts written off		   -   	  -   
	       Recovery of doubtful debts		   -   	  -   
	       Provision made for doubtful debts		   12,505,195 	  -   

	       Net adjustment 		   12,505,195 	  -   

	 Closing balance		   305,161,478 	  -   
				  
15.	 LOANS AND ADVANCES			 

	 Advances - (Unsecured - considered good)			 
	     To employees	 15.1	  71,300 	  457,240 
	 Advance to supplies and services (Unsecured)			 
	     Considered good			 
	     Advances to cane growers	 15.2 	  1,646,318 	  35,048,416 
	     Advance for store purchases	 15.3 	  13,418,739 	  74,247,325 

				     15,065,057 	  109,295,741 
	 Considered doubtful			 
	     Advances to cane growers		   -   	  5,000,000 
	     Less: Provision for doubtful advances		   -   	  (5,000,000)

				     -   	  -   

				     15,136,357 	  109,752,981
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15.1	 This represents advance given to employees against salary and expenses. These advances are 
provided for general purposes in accordance with the terms of their employment, which is not past 
due. These advances are unsecured, interest free and receivable on demand.			 

				  
15.2 	 This include advances to various sugar cane growers in the form of fertilizers and pesticides. These 

advances are unsecured, interest free and will be adjusted in sugar cane payment.		
	

15.3 	 This includes advances provided to employees to meet business expenses and are settled as and 
when the expenses are incurred. These advances do not carry any interest or mark-up.		
	

15.4 	 Financial asset under this caption is advance to employees which are trivial for the decision making 
of users of the financial statements hence no impact on measurement has been considered.		
	

	 Note	 2019	 2018
		  Rupees	 Rupees
15.5 	 Movement of provision for doubtful debts is as follows:			 
				  
	 Opening balance		   5,000,000 	  5,000,000 
	 Addition during the year		   -   	  -   
	 Written off during the year		   (5,000,000)	  -   

	 Closing balance		   -   	  5,000,000 
				  
16.	 SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS			 
				  
	 Prepayments			 
	 Expenses		  500,534	  -   
	 Insurance		  84,288	  -   

				     584,822 	  -   
17.	 OTHER RECEIVABLES			 
				  
	 (Considered good)			 
	 Sales tax 		   21,517,880 	  -   
	 Subsidy receivable on exports	 17.1	  105,742,500 	  105,742,500 

				     127,260,380 	  105,742,500 
				  
17.1	 This represents subsidy receivables from Government of Pakistan against export of sugar during the 

financial year 2016.  This is claimable under finance division’s notification No. 1(4) CF-C/2014-114 
dated February 18, 2015 in terms of which Government of Pakistan has approved total cash subsidy 
at the rate of Rs. 10/- per kg to sugar mills on export of sugar, as per the terms and conditions 
mentioned therein.			 

				  
	 Note	 2019	 2018
		  Rupees	 Rupees
18.	 CASH AND BANK BALANCES			 
				  
	 Cash in hand		   530,253 	  69,889 
	 Cash at banks			 
	     Current accounts	 18.1 	  25,848,795 	  2,150,304 

				     26,379,048 	  2,220,193 
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18.1 	 Cash with bank in current accounts do not carry any interest or mark-up. There is no impact on 
measurement of bank balances due to implementation of IFRS 9.			 

				  
18.2 	 In some bank accounts, the Company has not conducted any transactions since long and the 

bank had marked account as dormant. The Company is unable to operate these accounts and 
banks have not provided bank statements under these accounts, therefore, on prudence basis 
an impairment amounting to Rs. 0.0240 million has been recognised in these financial statements 
during the year.

19.	 SHARE CAPITAL

19.1	 Authorized share capital				  
					   
		      2019	 2018			   2019	 2018
	      Number of ordinary shares		  Rupees	 Rupees
	 of Rs. 10/- each	 			 
						    
	  70,000,000 	 70,000,000 	 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each	  700,000,000 	  700,000,000 
					   
19.2		 Issued, subscribed and paid up capital:				  

				  
	  6,400,000 	  6,400,000 	 Fully paid in cash 	  64,000,000 	  64,000,000 
	  3,050,000 	  3,050,000 	 Fully paid bonus shares	  30,500,000 	  30,500,000
 
	  9,450,000 	  9,450,000 		   94,500,000 	  94,500,000

		  Number of	 Rupees
		  Shares
19.2.1	 Movement of share capital is as follows: 			 
				  
	 Opening balance 		   9,450,000 	  94,500,000 
	  Bonus shares issued during the year 		   -   	  - 
  
	  Closing balance 		   9,450,000 	  94,500,000 
				  
19.2.2	There is no shareholder agreement for voting rights, board selection, rights of first refusal and block 

voting.			 
				  
19.2.3	As at September 30, 2019 M/s Naubahar Bottling Company (Private) Limited (Holding Company) holds 

4,806,468 (50.862%) shares of the company. Pattoki Sugar Mills Limited (ex-holding company) holds 
7,696,072 (81.44%) shares of the Company as at September 30, 2018.
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		  2019	 2018
		  Rupees	 Rupees
20.	 DIRECTORS’ LOANS			 
				  
	 Unsecured			 
	 Directors			 
	    Others (other than banking companies)			 
	    Opening balance		   -   	  -   
	    Obtained during the period/year			 
	    Mr. Muhammad Shamim Khan		   596,500,000 	  -   
	    Mrs. Qaiser Shamim Khan		   593,000,000 	  -   
	    Mr. Nauman Ahmed Khan		   22,000,000 	  -   

				     1,211,500,000 	  -   
	 Repaid during the period / year		   -   	  -   

		  Closing balance		   1,211,500,000 	  -   
				  
20.1 	 This represents unsecured interest free long term loans from directors of the Company to meet 

the working capital and long term requirements.  These are payable on discretion of the Company 
and will be paid as and when convenient to the Company. This has been disclosed/classified in 
accordance with TR -32 “Directors’ Loan” clause 3.3 “Contractual Directors’ loan that is interest free 
and repayable at the discretion of the Company”, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of Pakistan.			 

				  
21.	 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF FIXED ASSETS			 
				  
	 Balance brought forward		   1,978,827,460 	  2,034,783,706 
	 Revaluation during the year		   349,215,869 	  -   
	 Less:	Transferred to equity in respect of incremental			 
		  depreciation charged during			 
		  the year - (net of deferred tax)		   37,186,802 	  39,728,935 
		  Related deferred tax liability during the year			 
		  transferred to profit and loss account		   15,188,976 	  16,227,311 

				     52,375,778 	  55,956,246 

				     2,275,667,551 	  1,978,827,460 
	 Less:	Related deferred tax effect:			 
		  Balance as at October 01		   262,924,805 	  288,778,051 
		  Effect of change in rate		   -   	  (9,625,935)
		  Deferred tax impact for the period		   49,060,277 	  -   
		  Incremental depreciation charged during the			 
		  year transferred to profit and loss account		   (15,188,976)	  (16,227,311)

				     296,796,106 	  262,924,805 

				     1,978,871,445 	  1,715,902,655 
				  
21.1 	 The Company’s freehold land, buildings on freehold land, plant and machinery have been revalued 

by Tristar International Consultants (Private) Limited, an independent valuer not connected with the 
Company and approved by Pakistan Banks’ Association (PBA). The basis of revaluation for items of 
these fixed assets were as follows:			 

				  



64 ANNUAL REPORT 2019

	 Freehold land			 
				  
	 Fair market value of freehold land was assessed through inquiries to real estate agents and property 

dealers in near vicinity of freehold land. Different valuation methods and exercises were adopted 
according to experience, location and other usage of freehold land. Valuer had also considered all 
relevant factors as well.			 

				  
	 Buildings on freehold land			 
				  
	 Construction specifications were noted for each building and structure and new construction 

rates are applied according to construction specifications for current replacement values. After 
determining current replacement values, depreciation was calculated to determine the current 
assessed market value.			 

				  
	 Plant and machinery			 
				  
	 Suppliers and different sugar plant consultants in Pakistan and abroad were contacted to collect 

information regarding current prices of comparable sugar plant to determine current replacement 
value. Fair depreciation factor for each item is applied according to their physical condition, usage 
and maintenance.			 

				  
21.2 	 Had there been no revaluation, the net book value of the specific classes of operating assets would 

have been as follows:			 
				  
	 Note	 2019	 2018
		  Rupees	 Rupees
				  
	 Freehold land		   7,959,798 	  7,959,798
 
	 Buildings on freehold land		   12,196,121 	  13,551,245
 
	 Plant and machinery		   512,878,031 	  371,823,333 
				  
22.	 LONG TERM FINANCING			 
				  
	 Secured:			 
	    Banking Companies	 22.1 	  -   	  100,000,000 
				  
22.1 	 From banking companies			 
	    Opening balances		   200,000,000 	  200,000,000 
	    Obtained during the year		   -   	  -   
	    Repayments made during the year		   (100,000,000)	  -   

				     100,000,000 	  200,000,000 
	 Current portion shown under current liabilities		   (100,000,000)	  (100,000,000)

				     -   	  100,000,000 
				  
22.2 	 This represents term finance facility obtained from JS Bank Limited for working capital requirements 

due to BMR activities carried out for enhancement in production capacity. It shall be repaid through 
6 equal biannually instalments along with mark up. It is secured by way of first charge over fixed 
assets of the Company amounting to Rs. 400 million (with 25% margin), corporate guarantee of M/s 
Pattoki Sugar Mills Limited, subordination of Director’s loan of Rs. 500 million in favor of JS Bank 
and personal guarantees of all directors along with net worth statements. 			 
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	 Note	 2019	 2018
		  Rupees	 Rupees
23.	 LOAN FROM EX-HOLDING COMPANY			 
				  
	 Unsecured:			 
	 Pattoki Sugar Mills Limited (PSML)	 23.1 	  -   	  500,000,000 
				  
23.1 	 From holding company			 
	 Balance as at October 01		   525,000,000 	  525,000,000 
	 Obtained during the year		   -   	  -   
	 Repayments/adjustment made during the year		   (525,000,000)	  -   

				     -   	  525,000,000 
	 Current portion shown under current liabilities		   -   	  (25,000,000)

				     -   	  500,000,000 
				  
23.2 	 The Company obtained unsecured loan from M/s Pattoki Sugar Mills Limited (PSML) - the ex-

holding company that carries mark-up at the rate of 3 month’s KIBOR plus 2% per annum. The 
effective mark-up rate charged by PSML during the year ranging from 10.88% to 12.55% (2018: 
8.15% to 8.93%) per annum.			 

				  
24.	 LOAN FROM HOLDING COMPANY			 
				  
	 Unsecured:			 
	    Naubahar Bottling Company (Private) Limited	 24.1 	  965,960,400 	  -   
				  
24.1 	 From holding company			 
	    Balance as at October 01		   -   	  -   
	    Obtained during the year		   965,960,400 	  -   
	    Repayments/adjustment made during the year		   -   	  -   

				     965,960,400 	  -   
	 Current portion shown under current liabilities		   -   	  -   

				     965,960,400 	  -   
				  
24.2 	 The Company obtained unsecured loan from M/s Naubahar Bottling Company (Private) Limited - 

the holding company that carries mark-up at the rate of 3 month’s KIBOR plus 0.5% per annum. 
The effective mark-up rate charged by Naubahar Bottling Company (Private) Limited during the year 
ranging from 11.02% to 14.35% (2018: Nil) per annum. The management for the time being does 
not intend to repay any amount against these loans until the end of next financial year and hence no 
current maturity has been provided. These will be paid as and when convenient to the Company.		
	

	 Note	 2019	 2018
		  Rupees	 Rupees
25.	 DEFERRED LIABILITIES			 
				  
	    Deferred taxation 	 25.1	  386,808,417 	  284,572,416 
	    Provision for gratuity	 25.3	  89,033 	  3,661,253 

				     386,897,450 	  288,233,669 
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		  2019	 2018
		  Rupees	 Rupees
25.1 	 Deferred taxation			 
				  
	 Deferred tax liability comprises as follows:			 
	 Taxable temporary differences			 
	    Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets		   296,796,106 	  262,924,805 
	    Tax depreciation allowances 		   90,012,311 	  73,748,982 
	 Deductible temporary differences			 
	    Provision for gratuity		   -   	  (1,061,763)
	    Unabsorbed tax depreciation		   -   	  (51,039,608)

				     386,808,417 	  284,572,416 
				  
25.2 	 The gross movement in the deferred tax liability during the year is as follow:			 
				  
	 Balance as at October 1,		   284,572,416 	  -   
	 IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments - Impact of change 
	 in accounting policy (Note 6.1)		  -   	  -   

				     284,572,416 	  -   
	 Charge to profit the statement of profit or loss 		   53,175,724 	  -   
	 Charge to other comprehensive income		   49,060,277 	  -   

				     386,808,417 	  -   
				  
25.2.1	As at September 30, 2019, deferred tax asset amounting Rs. 374.963 million (2018: Rs. 88.87 

million) on unused tax losses, impairment loss and gratuity have not been recognised in the financial 
statements as a matter of prudence as in the opinion of the management there is no certainty 
regarding realisability of the amount. The management intends to re-assess the recognition of 
deferred tax asset as at September 30, 2020. The loss can be carry forwarded upto 5 years. 	
		

25.3 	 Provision for gratuity			 
				  
25.3.1	General description			 
				  
	 The scheme provides for terminal benefits for all its permanent employees who qualify for the 

scheme. The defined benefit payable to each employee at the end of his service comprises of 
total number of years of his service multiplied by last drawn basic salary including cost of living 
allowance.			 

				  
	 Annual charge is based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent approved valuer M/S 

Nauman Associates as at September 30, 2019 using the Projected Unit Credit method.		
	

	 The Company faces the following risks on account of gratuity:			 
				  
	 Final salary risk - The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than 

what the Company has assumed.  Since the benefit is calculated on the final salary (which will 
closely reflect inflation and other macro-economic factors), the benefit amount would also increase 
proportionately.			 

				  
	 Discount rate fluctuation - The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference 

to corporate bond yields. A decrease in corporate bond yields will increase plan liabilities, although 
this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the current plans’ bond holdings.		
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	 Demographic Risks: Mortality Risk - The risk that the actual mortality experience is different than 
the assumed mortality. This effect is more pronounced in schemes where the age and service 
distribution is on the higher side.			 

				  
	 Withdrawal Risk - The risk of actual withdrawals experience is different from assumed withdrawal 

probability. The significance of the withdrawal risk varies with the age, service and the entitled 
benefits of the beneficiary.			 

		  2019	 2018
		  Percentage	 Percentage
		                            Per annum
25.3.2	Significant actuarial assumptions		    	   
			     	
	 Following are significant actuarial assumptions used 
	 in the valuation:			 
				  
	 Discount rate		   12.50 	 10
	 Expected rate of increase in salary		   11.50 	 9
	 Expected average remaining working life time of employees	 6 years 	 6 years
				  
	 Note	 2019	 2018
		  Rupees	 Rupees
25.3.3	Reconciliation of payable to defined benefit plan			 
				  
	    Present value of obligation			 
	    Liability recognized in balance sheet		   89,033 	  3,661,253 
				  
25.3.4	Movement of the liability recognized in the 
	    statement of financial position			 
				  
	 Opening net liability		   3,661,253 	  3,051,154 
	 Charge for the year		   170,460 	  1,227,664 
	 Remeasurement chargeable to other 			 
	 comprehensive income 		   -   	  (617,565)
	 Written back during the year	 25.3.12	  (3,742,680)	  -   

	 Closing net liability		   89,033 	  3,661,253 
				  
25.3.5	Movement in present value of defined benefit obligations 			 
				  
	 Present value of obligation at the start of the year		   3,661,253 	  3,051,154 
	 Current service cost		   300,059 	  555,606 
	 Past service cost		   -   	  460,200 
	 Interest cost		   50,308 	  211,858 
	 Gains and losses arising on plan settlements		   (179,907)	  -   
	 Remeasurements:			 
	    Actuarial (gain)/losses from changes in 
	    demographic assumption		   -   	  -   
	    Actuarial (gain)/losses from changes in 
	    financial assumption		   -   	  14,161 
	 Experience adjustments		   -   	  (631,726)
	 Benefit due but not paid (payable)	 25.3.12	  (3,742,680)	  -   

	 Closing present value of defined benefit obligations 		   89,033 	  3,661,253 
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		  2019	 2018
		  Rupees	 Rupees
25.3.6	Charge for the year			 
				  
	 Current service cost		   300,059 	  555,606 
	 Past service cost		   -   	  460,200 
	 Interest cost		   50,308 	  211,858 
	 Gains and losses arising on plan settlements		   (179,907)	 -	

	 Charge for the year		   170,460 	  1,227,664 
				  
25.3.7	The expected charge in respect of defined benefit plan for the year ending September 30, 2020 will 

be 0.433 million.			 
				  
25.3.8	Total remeasurement charge in other comprehensive income			 
				  
	 Remeasurement of plan obligation			 
	    Actuarial (gain)/losses from changes in 
	    demographic assumption		   -   	  -   
	    Actuarial (gain)/losses from changes in 
	    financial assumption		   -   	  14,161 
	    Experience adjustment		   -   	  (631,726)

				     -   	  (617,565)
25.3.9	Sensitivity analysis			 
				  
	 The impact of 1% change in following variables on defined benefit obligation is as follows:		

	
		  Increase in	 Decrease in
		  assumption	 assumption
				  
	 Discount rate + 100 bps		   85,915 	  2,960,941 
	 Discount rate - 100 bps		   92,519 	  3,318,230 
	 Salary increase + 100 bps		   92,595 	  3,323,821 
	 Salary increase - 100 bps		   85,794 	  2,952,750 
				  

		  2019	 2018
		  Rupees	 Rupees
25.3.10	Maturity profile			 
				  
	 Time in year			 
		  1		   -   	  511,028 
		  2		   48,949 	  435,086 
		  3		   574,600 	  285,243 
		  4		   63,272 	  439,292 
		 5-11 onwards		   34,339,782 	  16,819,116 
				  
	 The average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 4 years.
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25.3.11	Year wise comparison is as follows:				  
	

		  2019	 2018	  2017 	  2016 	  2015 
				    Rupees			 

	

	 Present value of defined benefit obligation	 89,033 	 3,661,253	 3,051,154	  2,050,989 	  1,412,063 

	 Experience adjustment on obligation	  -   	    (617,565)	     378,046	        31,357 	    487,860 
						    
25.3.12	These liabilities have been written back as the final settlement has been made with these employees 

and acknowledgement has been obtained that no dues are pending at the Company. Accordingly 
these have been written back to other income.

	 Note	 2019	 2018
		  Rupees	 Rupees
26.	 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES			 
				  
	    Trade creditors	 26.1 & 2	  245,699,769 	  180,184,246 
	    Accrued liabilities		   13,475,505 	  28,271,372 
	    Advances from customers  (unsecured)	 26.4	  340,197,135 	  343,376,929 
	    Workers’ Profit Participation Fund 	 26.5	  1,872,644 	  1,609,491 
	    Taxes and duties payable		   7,137,046 	  2,359,634 
	    Sales tax payable		   831,110 	  37,498,444 
	    Other liabilities 		   331,155 	  26,196,221 

				     609,544,364 	  619,496,337 
				  
26.1	 This includes Rs. 33.353 million (2018: Rs. 2.184 million) payable to Imporient Chemicals (Private) 

Limited (Ex related party) against purchase of chemical.			 
				  
26.2	 This includes Rs. 0.690 million (2018: Nil) payable to Thal Industries Corporation Limited and 

Rs. 0.337 million (2018: Nil) to Al-Moiz Industries Limited (a related parties) against payment of  
purchase of plant and machinery and steel products.			 

				  
26.3	 The maximum amount due to Thal Industries Corporation Limited and Al-Moiz Industries Limited 

at the end of any month during the year was Rs.  0.690 million (2018: Nil) and Rs. 0.337 (2018: Nil) 
respectively.			 

				  
26.4	 The advance from customers’ balances  amounting to Rs. 340.197 million which are long outstanding 

at the reporting date are adjustable against the payment to be made to the Sponsor Sellers as 
per shareholder agreement. However, due to un-availability of third party confirmation, on produce 
basis these balance have not been adjusted and the Company will complete the due legal process 
before adjusting these balances.			 

				  
26.5	 Workers’ Profit Participation Fund			 
				  
	 Balance as at October 01,		   1,609,492 	  1,442,714 
	 Interest at prescribed rate	 26.7	  263,152 	  166,778 
	 Less: Amount paid to fund		   -   	  -   

				     1,872,644 	  1,609,492 
	 Current year’s allocation at 5%	 37	  -   	  -   

				     1,872,644 	  1,609,492 
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26.6	 The Company retains the allocation of this fund for its business operations till the amounts are 
paid.			

				  
26.7	 Interest on Workers’ profit (participation) fund has been provided at the rate of 16.35% (2018: 

11.56%).			 
				  
	 Note	 2019	 2018
		  Rupees	 Rupees
27.	 DUE TO EX - HOLDING COMPANY			 
				  
	 Unsecured:			 
	 Pattoki Sugar Mills Limited (PSML)	 28.1	  104,066,694 	  1,154,442,231 
				  
27.1 	 The Company has obtained unsecured short term loan from M/s Pattoki Sugar Mills Limited (PSML) 

- the ex-holding company that carries mark-up at the rate of 3 month’s KIBOR plus 2% per annum. 
The effective mark-up rate charged by PSML during the year ranging from 10.88% to 12.55 % 
(2018: 8.15% to 8.93%) per annum.			 

				  
28.	 TEMPORARY BANK OVERDRAFT			 
				  
	 Temporary bank overdraft - unsecured	 28.1 	  -   	  25,982,166 
				  
28.1 	 This represents temporary credit balances, which occurred due to outstanding cheques at the 

period end, issued in anticipation of deposits. Subsequent to period end, this amount has been fully 
adjusted.			 

				  
29.	 MARK UP ACCRUED			 
				  
	 Secured			 
	    Long term financing		   12,641,413 	  6,329,216 
	    Long term financing from holding company and ex holding	 	 73,920,778 	  147,728,893 
	    Short term borrowings		   -   	  -   

				     86,562,191 	  154,058,109 
				  
30.	 TAXATION - NET			 
				  
	 Advance income tax 		   1,810,896 	  7,102,633 
	 Less: Provision for taxation	 40	  (1,824,111)	  (12,012,897)

				     (13,215)	  (4,910,264)
				  
31.	 CURRENT PORTION OF LONG TERM  LIABILITIES			 
				  
	 Long term financing 	 22	  100,000,000 	  100,000,000 
	 Loan from ex-holding company	 23	  -   	  25,000,000 

				     100,000,000 	  125,000,000 
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32.	 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS			 
				  
32.1	 Contingent liabilities			 
				  
a)	 The LTU-FBR has preferred a reference before Income Tax Appellate (ITAT) for the assessment year 

1996 - 1997 against the decision of CIT appeals. The department has also filed petition for leave to 
appeal before the honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan for the assessment year 1999 - 2000 and 
tax year 2006 against the order in the favour of the company by the honorable High Court of Sindh. 
In the opinion of the tax advisor  the ultimate appellate decision is likely to be in Company’s favour, 
hence no provision is made in these accounts as there will be no tax impact of the matter in view 
of brought forward tax losses. In view of the favorable decision of the higher appellate forums on 
the like issue in prior years the management is hopeful about favorable outcome in above matters. 
Hence no provision is made in these account as there will be no tax impact of the matter in view of 
brought forward losses.			 

				  
b)	 The Company has filed reference application before the Honorable High Court of Sindh against the 

decision of ITAT in respect of assessment year 2000 -2001, the reference application is pending before 
the honorable High Court Sindh. The Company has also filed the appeal before the Commissioner 
of income tax appeals against addition made by the assessing officer for the assessment year 2002 
- 2003 which is pending for adjudication. In view of the favorable decision of the higher appellate 
forums on the like issue in prior years the management is hopeful about favorable outcome in above 
matters. Hence no provision is made in these account as there will be no tax impact of the matter in 
view of brought forward losses.			 

				  
c)	 The Company has filed an appeal before the Tribunal against the order of Commissioner Inland 

Revenue disallowing refund of further tax on the ground that the incidence of the tax has been 
passed on the consumers and the Company is not entitled to claim refund in terms of Section 3 (B) 
of the sales Tax Act, 1990. The management of the Company is of the view that outcome of the suit 
would be in favour of the company.			 

				  
d)	 Demand amounting to Rs. 3.825 million has been created by DCIR vide order dated November 03, 

2017 against the Company for adjustment of input tax. The Company being aggrieved filed input tax 
rectification application. The Company expects a favorable outcome of the proceedings. However, 
if the case is decided against the Company, it may result in tax payable of Rs. 3.825 million (2018: 
Rs. 3.825 million).			 

				  
e)	 Demand amounting to Rs. 2.528 million has been created by DCIR vide order dated November 

07, 2018 against the Company for adjustment of input tax for the period of January 2018. The 
Company being aggrieved filed input tax rectification application. The Company expects a favorable 
outcome of the proceedings. However, if the case is decided against the Company, it may result in 
tax payable of Rs. 2.528 million (2018: Rs. 2.528 million).			 

				  
f)	 Demand amounting to Rs. 12.648 million has been created by DCIR vide order dated December 

16, 2018 against the Company for adjustment of input tax for the period of February 2018. The 
Company being aggrieved filed input tax rectification application. The Company expects a favorable 
outcome of the proceedings. However, if the case is decided against the Company, it may result in 
tax payable of Rs. 12.648 million (2018: Rs. 12.648 million).			 

				  
g)	 Demand amounting to Rs. 9.894 million has been created by DCIR vide order dated December 20, 

2018 against the Company for adjustment of input tax for the period of March 2018. The Company 
being aggrieved filed input tax rectification application. The Company expects a favorable outcome 
of the proceedings. However, if the case is decided against the Company, it may result in tax payable 
of Rs. 12.648 million (2018: Rs. 12.648 million).			 
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h)	 Demand amounting to Rs. 41.616 million has been created by DCIR vide order dated August 04, 
2017 against the Company on account of sales tax audit for the tax year 2014 and certain amount 
were held recoverable. The Company being aggrieved filed appeal before CIR (A). CIR (A) remanded 
back the case for fresh adjudication. Thereafter in fresh proceedings an amount of Rs. 3.416 million 
has been established vide order dated March 28, 2019. This has also been challenged before CIR 
Appeals. The Company expects a favorable outcome of the proceedings. However, if the case is 
decided against the Company, it may result in tax payable of Rs. 3.416 million.		
	

i)	 Demand amounting to Rs. 10.137 million has been created by DCIR vide order dated November 12, 
2018 against the Company on account of inadmissible input tax adjustment for the period July 2016 
to November 2017. The Company being aggrieved filed appeal before CIR (A). CIR (A) remanded 
back the case for fresh adjudication. The case decided against the Company and an amount of 
Rs. 10.211 million has been paid to the Department under protest and also appeal has been filed 
against this order. The Company expects a favorable outcome of the proceedings.		
	

j)	 As per SRO of 77(I)/2013 dated February 07, 2013, the Federal Government allowed reduced rate 
@ 0.5% FED on local sales of white crystalline sugar equivalent to the quantity actually exported by 
the sugar manufacturer as per quota allotted. Sales tax and Federal Excise returns for the tax periods 
from November 2013 to June 2014 were analysed by the Commissioner Inland Revenue and it was 
observed that registered person had declared local sales on which Company was required to charge 
and pay FED @ 8% in VAT mode under the provision of section 3 and 7 of the Federal Excise Act, 
2005. The Commissioner Inland Revenue created a demand amounting to Rs. 65.084 million along 
with default surcharge and penalty of Rs. 3.254 million on short payment of FED based that Company 
charged and paid FED at the rate of 0.5% without fulfilling the conditions as mentioned in SRO 
77(I)/2013. Being aggrieved with the order passed by the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue, 
the Company preferred appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals-I), Karachi. The 
CIR (A) vide order in appeal No. STA/91/LTU/2019/09 vacated order of Deputy Commissioner and 
passed order in favour of the Company. The department has filed an appeal against this order to 
Appellate Tribunal IR. The Company expects a favourable outcome of the proceedings. However, if 
the case is decided against the Company, it may result in tax payable of Rs. 68.338 million.		
	

k)	 As per SRO of 77(I)/2013 dated February 07, 2013 read with the SRO 1072(I)/ 2013 dated December 
27, 2013, the Federal Government allowed recued rate@.0.5% FED on local sales of white crystalline 
sugar equivalent to the quantity actually exported by the sugar manufacturer as per quota allotted 
by the ECC in it meeting held on January 10, 2013. Sales tax and Federal Excise returns for the tax 
periods from February 2013 to October 2013 were analysed by the Commissioner Inland Revenue 
and it was observed that registered person had declared local sales on which Company was 
required to charge and pay FED @ 8% in VAT mode under the provision of section 3 and 7 of the 
Federal Excise Act, 2005. The Commissioner Inland Revenue created a demand amounting to Rs. 
15.393 million along with default surcharge and penalty of Rs. 0.769 million on short payment of FED 
based that Company charged and paid FED at the rate of 0.5% without fulfilling the conditions as 
mentioned in SRO 77(I)/2013. Being aggrieved with the order passed by the Deputy Commissioner 
Inland Revenue, the Company preferred appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue 
(Appeals-I), Karachi. The CIR (A) vide order in appeal No. STA/90/LTU/2019/06 vacated order of 
Deputy Commissioner and passed order in favour of the Company. The department has filed an 
appeal against this order to Appellate Tribunal IR. The Company expects a favourable outcome of 
the proceedings. However, if the case is decided against the Company, it may result in tax payable 
of Rs.  16.163 million.			 

				  
l)	 Demand amounting to Rs. 10.163 million has been created by DCIR against the Company on 

account of some discrepancies were observed in the sales tax returns for the period from July 2016 
to November 2017. The Company being aggrieved filed appeal before CIR (A). CIR (A) remanded 
back the case for fresh adjudication. Thereafter in fresh proceedings an amount of Rs. 10.163 million 
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has been demanded by DCIR. This has also been challenged before CIR Appeals. The CIR (A) vide 
order in Appeal No. STA/40/LTU/2019/07 dated September 26, 2019 annulled order of DCIR. Being 
aggrieved with the order department has filed second appeal to Appellate Tribunal IR. The Company 
expects a favourable outcome of the proceedings. However, if the case is decided against the 
Company, it may result in tax payable of Rs. 10.163 million.			 

				  
m)	 The company (Baba Farid Sugar Mills Limited - BFSML) has issued a corporate guarantee for Rs. 

300 million (2018: Rs. 300 million) in favour of Bank Alfalah Limited on behalf of Pattoki Sugar Mills 
Limited. This has been vacated subsequent to the balance sheet date.			 

				  
n)	 Land of the company is mortgaged with Bank Al Habib Limited against loan facility to Pattoki Sugar 

Mills Limited. The long term assets of the company by amounting Rs. 500 million is also pledged 
with Bank Al Habib Limited. There is also ranking charge amounting to Rs. 225 million. These have 
been made on the behalf of the Pattoki Sugar Mills Limited. The Company is pursuing the matter 
and expecting of vacation of these charges during the next year.			 

				  
o)	 The long term and current assets of the company by amounting Rs. 2,068 million is also pledged 

with MCB Bank Limited against loan facility to Pattoki Sugar Mills Limited. The Company is pursuing 
the matter and expecting of vacation of these charges during the next year.			 

				  
p)	 The long term assets of the company by amounting Rs. 294 million is also pledged with Samba 

Bank Limited against loan facility to Pattoki Sugar Mills Limited. The Company is pursuing the 
matter and expecting of vacation of these charges during the next year.			 

				  
32.2	 Commitments			 
				  
	 The Company is committed as at the balance sheet date in respect of capital expenditure of Rs. 

6.00 million (2018: Nil).
			 
		  2019	 2018
		  Rupees	 Rupees
33.	 SALES			 
				  
	 Sales			 
	 Manufacturing - local			 
	 Sugar		   114,874,295 	  1,439,473,139 
	 By products sales:			 
	 Molasses		   16,389,999 	  69,762,612 
	 V.F.Cake		   2,385,000 	  1,006,408 

				     18,774,999 	  70,769,020 
	 Less: Sales tax			 
	 Sugar 		   (9,313,920)	  (128,244,000)
	 Molasses		   (2,381,453)	  (31,355)
	 V.F.Cake		   (346,539)	  (146,231)

				     (12,041,912)	  (128,421,586)

				     121,607,382 	  1,381,820,573 
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	 Note	 2019	 2018
		  Rupees	 Rupees
34.	 COST OF SALES			 
				  
	 Raw materials consumed			 
	    Opening stock		   -   	  -   
	    Purchases		   122,252,719 	  882,081,661 

				     122,252,719 	  882,081,661 
	 Closing stock		   -   	  -   

				     122,252,719 	  882,081,661 
 				  
	 Stores, spares and consumables		   8,895,560 	  2,813,592 
	 Packing materials consumed		   713,731 	  6,812,980 
	 Chemicals consumed		   1,241,536 	  5,520,016 
	 Salaries, wages and other benefits 	 34.1	  40,634,486 	  53,404,810 
	 Fuel and power		   11,414,524 	  17,568,809 
	 Repair and maintenance		   147,760,390 	  19,564,596 
	 Depreciation 	 9.6	  75,050,182 	  74,789,375 
	 Vehicle running expenses		   2,182,603 	  1,561,392 
	 Fee and subscription		   115,000 	  60,000 
	 Provision for slow moving stores and spares		   15,041,549 	  -   
	 Other factory overheads		   1,664,975 	  169,455 

				     304,714,536 	  182,265,025 
	 Work in process			 
	    Opening		   33,866,520 	  30,439,554 
	    Closing	 13	  -   	  (33,866,520)

				     33,866,520 	  (3,426,966)
	 Cost of goods manufactured		   460,833,775 	  1,060,919,720 

	 Finished goods			 
	    Opening		   17,865,324 	  502,595,136 
	    Closing	 13	  -   	  (17,865,324)

				     17,865,324 	  484,729,812 

				     478,699,099 	  1,545,649,532 
				  
34.1	 This amount includes Nil (2018: Rs. 0.352 million) in respect of employees’ retirement benefits.		

	
35.	 SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES			 
				  
	 Salaries, wages and other benefits	 35.1	  400,728 	  841,779 
	 Stacking, restacking and carriage		   71,099 	  1,442,155 

				     471,827 	  2,283,934 
				  
35.1	 This amount includes Nil (2018: Rs. 0.509 million) in respect of employees’ retirement benefits.		
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	 Note	 2019	 2018
		  Rupees	 Rupees
36.	 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES			 
				  
	 Salaries, wages and other benefits	 36.1	  15,869,758 	  25,771,331 
	 Traveling and conveyance		   78,798 	  6,150 
	 Rent, rates and taxes		   2,245,112 	  600 
	 Telephone and postage		   184,815 	  138,215 
	 Printing and stationery		   1,083,881 	  411,471 
	 Fee and subscription		   3,874,281 	  1,290,719 
	 Insurance		   463,818 	  2,371,259 
	 Repair and maintenance		   1,147,756 	  46,550 
	 Vehicle running expenses		   2,819,619 	  4,027,803 
	 Entertainment		   1,082,963 	  685,781 
	 Legal and professional charges		   463,000 	  569,917 
	 Charity and donations	 36.2	  119,310 	  323,160 
	 Depreciation	 9.6	  676,164 	  645,779 
	 Penalty		   -   	  5,387,138 
	 Miscellaneous		   556,319 	  168,478 

				     30,665,594 	  41,844,351 
				  
36.1	 This amount includes Rs. 0.170 million (2018: Rs. 0.824 million) in respect of employees’ retirement 

benefits.			 
				  
36.2	 Donations			 
				  
36.2.1	This represents amounts paid for sidqas etc. Donations other than mentioned above were not made 

to any donee in which any director of the Company or his spouse had any interest at any time during 
the year.			 

				  
37.	 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES			 
				  
	 Auditors’ remuneration			 
	    Audit fee		   500,000 	  500,000 
	    Half yearly review fee		   248,750 	  50,000 
	    Review of code of corporate governance		   50,000 	  10,000 
	    Out of pocket expenses		   25,000 	  -   

				     823,750 	  560,000 
	 Security deposits written off		   587,575 	  -   
	 Provision for doubtful debts		   12,505,195 	  -   
	 Advances written off	 37.1	  65,034,841 	  -   
	 Other receivable written off	 37.1	  7,249,736 	  -   

				     86,201,097 	  560,000 
				  
37.1	 This represents doubtful advances and other receivables written off during the year on prudence 

basis as chances of recoveries are remote.			 
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	 Note	 2019	 2018
		  Rupees	 Rupees
38.	 OTHER INCOME			 
				  
	    Income from non- financial assets			 
	       Gain on sale of fixed assets		   3,622,818 	  -   
	       Sale of scrap		   1,666,051 	  -   
	       Liabilities no longer payable written back	 37.1 & 2	  17,708,614 	  -   

				     22,997,483 	  -   
				  
38.1 	 This includes gratuity amounting to Rs. 3.743 million (2018: Nil) written back due final settlement of 

employees during the year.			 
				  
38.2 	 This also includes creditors amounting to Rs. 12.506 million (2018: Nil) written back for excess 

balances which is not confirmed by them.			 
				  
39.	 FINANCIAL CHARGES			 
				  
	 Mark-up / interest on:			 
	 Long term financing		   19,114,969 	  24,689,567 
	 Loan from ex -holding company		  85,160,793	  144,810,241 
	 Loan from holding company		   71,572,815 	  -   
	 Worker’s profit participation fund		   263,152 	  166,778 

				     176,111,729 	  169,666,586 
	 Bank charges and commission		   80,777 	  108,786 

				     176,192,506 	  169,775,372 
				  
40.	 TAXATION			 
				  
	    Current	 40.1	  1,824,111 	  12,012,897 
	    Deferred tax 		   53,175,724 	  (16,239,322)

				     54,999,835 	  (4,226,425)
				  
40.1	 As the tax charge represent alternates minimum tax (turnover) under the income Tax Ordinance, 

2001, numerical reconciliation between the average effective tax rate and the applicable tax rate is 
not prepared and presented.			 

				  
40.2	 The rate of tax has been fixed at 29% for Tax Year 2019 and onwards by taxation authorities.		

	
40.3	 Comparison of tax provision against tax assessments
			 
			   Excess/	 Tax	 Tax assessment/
	 Years		  (Short)	 provision	 tax return
		  Note		   (Rupees) 
	
	 2017-18	 40.4	  -   	  12,012,897 	  12,012,897 
	 2016-17	 40.4	  (670)	  21,662,092 	  21,662,762 
	 2015-16	 40.4	  -   	  11,831,378 	  11,831,378 
				  
40.4	 Minimum tax for tax year 2016, 2017 and 2018 of Rs. 44.095 million, Rs. 47.191 million 

and Rs. 62.772 million was fully adjusted against the tax credits under section 65B. 		
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41.	 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS			 
				  
	 The Company’s main accounting policies affecting its result of operations and financial conditions 

are set out in note 6. Judgments and assumptions have been required by the management in 
applying the Company’s accounting policies in many areas. Actual results may differ from estimates 
calculated using these judgments and assumptions. Key sources of estimation, uncertainty and 
critical accounting judgments are as follows:			 

				  
a)	 Income taxes			 
				  
	 The Company takes into account relevant provisions of the current income tax laws while providing 

for current and deferred taxes as explained in note 8.10 to these financial statements.		
	

b)	 Defined benefit plan			 
				  
	 Certain actuarial assumptions have been adopted by external professional valuer (as disclosed 

in note 24.3) for valuation of present value of defined benefit obligations. Any changes in these 
assumptions in future years might affect unrecognized gains and losses in those years.		
	

c)	 Property, plant and equipment			 
				  
	 The estimates for revalued amounts, if any, of different classes of property, plant and equipment, are 

based on valuation performed by external professional valuers and recommendation of technical 
teams of the Company. Further, the Company reviews the value of the assets for possible impairment 
on an annual basis. 			 

				  
	 Any change in the estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective 

items of property, plant and equipment with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and 
impairment. As explained in note 9 to these financial statements, the  Company has revalued its free 
hold land as on September 30, 2019.			 

				  
d)	 Stores and spares			 
				  
	 Management has made estimates for realizable amount of slow moving and obsolete stores and 

spares items to determine provision for slow moving and obsolete items. Any future change in the 
estimated realizable amounts might affect carrying amount of stores and spares with corresponding 
affect on amounts recognized in profit and loss account as provision / reversal. 

				  
e)	 Financial instrument			 
				  
	 The fair value of the financial instrument that are not traded in an active market is determined by 

using valuation techniques based on assumption that are dependent on conditions existing at the 
balance sheet.			 

				  
f)	 Provision for doubtful receivables			 
				  
	 The Company  uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and other receivables. 

The provision matrix is initially based on the Company’s historical observed default rates. The 
Company will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-
looking information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are 
expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the 
manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At every reporting date, the historical 
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.
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g)	 Fair value measurement			 
				  
	 A number of assets and liabilities included in the financial statements require measurement at, and/

or disclosure of, fair value. The fair value measurement of the Establishment’s financial and non- 
financial assets and liabilities utilises market observable inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs 
used in determining fair value measurements are categorized into different levels based on how 
observable the inputs used in the valuation technique utilised are (the fair value hierarchy):		
	

	  - Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical items (unadjusted)			 
	  - Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs other than Level 1 inputs			 
	  - Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from market data).			 
				  
	 The classification of an item into the above levels is based on the lowest level of the inputs used that 

has a significant effect on the fair value measurement of the item. Transfers of items between levels 
are recognised in the period they occur.			 

				  
h)	 Provision and contingencies			 
				  
	 The Company reviews the status of all pending litigations and claims against the Company. Based 

on its judgment and the advice of the legal advisors for the estimated financial outcome, appropriate 
disclosure or provision is made. The actual outcome of these litigations and claims can have an 
effect on the carrying amounts of the liabilities recognized at the balance sheet date.		
	

i)	 Impairment of assets			 
				  
	 The carrying amounts of the Company’s assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine 

whether there is any indication of impairment loss. If any such indication exists, recoverable amount 
is estimated using criteria given in respective accounting standards to determine the extent of 
impairment loss, if any.			 

				  
		  2019	 2018
		  Rupees	 Rupees
42.	 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
			 
	 Temporary bank overdraft		   -   	  (25,982,166)
	 Cash and bank balances		   26,379,048 	  2,220,193 

				     26,379,048 	  (23,761,973)
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43.1	 Basis of relationship with the company				  
					   
	 In respect of associated companies and holding company incorporated inside Pakistan with whom 

the company had entered into transaction during the financial year along with basis of relationship 
is as follows:

				  
	 Name of related party	  Country of	 Relationship	 Basis of	 Shareholdings
		  Incorporation		  Association
					   
	 Pattoki Sugar Mills Limited	 Pakistan	 Ex- Parent company	 Note 43.4	  Nil 
	 Imporient Chemicals (Private) Limited	 Pakistan	 Ex-Associate/	 Note 43.4	  Nil 
			   ultimate parent 
			   company
	 Exporient Knitters (Private) Limited	 Pakistan	 Ex-Associate	 Note 43.4	  Nil 
	 Naubahar Bottling Company (Private) Limited	 Pakistan	 Holding	 Shareholding	  50.86% 
	 Al-Moiz Industries Limited	 Pakistan	 Associated	 Common management	  Nil 
	 Moiz Textile Limited	 Pakistan	 Associated	 Common management	  Nil 
	 The Thal Industries Corporation Limited	 Pakistan	 Associated	 Common management	  Nil 
	 Mr. Muhammad Shamim Khan	 Pakistan	 Director	 Shareholding	  17.36% 
	 Mrs Qaiser Shamim Khan	 Pakistan	 Director	 Shareholding	  9.64% 
	 Mr. Adnan Ahmed Khan	 Pakistan	 Chief Executive	 Shareholding	  9.64% 
	 Mr. Nauman Khan	 Pakistan	 Director	 Shareholding	  9.64% 
	 Malik Manzoor Hussain Humayun	 Pakistan	 Director	 Shareholding	  0.0021% 
	 Mr. Farid ul din Ahmed	 Pakistan	 Director	 Shareholding	  0.0021% 
	 Mrs Sarah Hajra Khan	 Pakistan	 Director	 Shareholding	  0.0032% 
					   
43.2	 The details of compensation paid to key management personnel are shown under the heading of 

“Remuneration of Chief Executive, Directors and Executive (note 48)”. There are no  transactions 
with key management personnel other than under their terms of employment except otherwise 
stated.				  

					   
43.3	 Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, 

directing and controlling the activities of the entity. The Company considers all members of its 
management team, including the Chief Executive Officer and the Directors to be key management 
personnel.				  

					   
43.4	 This refers to note 3, these entities were the related parties for the period from October 01, 2018 to 

June 13, 2019.

44.	 LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED			 
				  
	 There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company, which is based on:		

	
		  2019	 2018

	 Profit after taxation 		   (682,625,093)	  (374,066,191)

	 Weighted average number of ordinary shares 		   9,450,000 	  9,450,000 

	 Earnings per share - (Rupees)		   (72.24)	  (39.58)
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45.	 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT OF LIABILITIES AND EQUITIES TO CASH FLOWS ARISING 
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

				  
	 			   Liabilities		
		  Long term	 Directors	 Holding	 Total
		  Loan	 contribution	 company
			                                    (Rupees)			 
					   
	 Balance as at October 1, 2018	  200,000,000 	  -   	  1,679,442,231 	  1,879,442,231 
					   
	 Contribution/ borrowings obtained	  -   	  1,211,500,000 	  965,960,400 	  2,177,460,400 
	 Repayment of financing	  (100,000,000)	  -   	  -   	  (100,000,000)
	 Payment/adjustment	  -   	  -   	  (1,575,375,537)	  (1,575,375,537)

		   (100,000,000)	  1,211,500,000 	  (609,415,137)	  502,084,863 

	 Balance as at September 30, 2019	  100,000,000 	  1,211,500,000 	  1,070,027,094 	  2,381,527,094 
					   
45.1	 There is no movement in the dividend during the year, therefore no reconciliation has been 

prepared.				  
					   
45.2	 There is Rs.108.491 million as non cash transactions in the financing activities against Pattoki Sugar 

Mills Limited during the year. These are adjusted through related party receivable balance and sale 
made during the year.

46.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS			 
				  
	 Financial risk management			 
				  
	 The Company has exposures to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:		

	
	   -  Credit risk			 
	   -  Liquidity risk			 
	   -  Market risk			 
				  
	 The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of Company’s 

risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the 
Company’s risk management policies.			 

				  
46.1 	 Credit risk			 
				  
	 Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if the 

counter party fail completely to perform as contracted and arise principally from trade debts, 
loans and advances, trade deposits, other receivables and bank balances. The carrying amount 
of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure before any credit enhancements. The 
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is as follows:			 

				  
		  2019	 2018
		  Rupees	 Rupees
				  
	 Long term  deposits		   -   	  587,575 
	 Trade debts  - net of provision		   77,491,042 	  492,485,573 
	 Loans and advances - net of provision		   71,300 	  457,240 
	 Bank balances		   25,848,795 	  2,150,304 

				     103,411,137 	  495,680,692 
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	 To manage exposure to credit risk in respect of trade receivables, management performs credit 
reviews taking into account the customer’s financial position, past experience and other factors. 
Credit terms are approved by the approval committee. Where considered necessary, advance 
payments are obtained from certain parties. The management has set a maximum credit period of 
30 days to reduce the credit risk. 			 

				  
	 Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar business 

activities or have similar economic features that would cause their abilities to meet contractual 
obligation to be similarly effected by the changes in economic, political or other conditions. The 
Company believes that it is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk.			 

				  
	 The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade debts at the balance sheet date by geographic region 

is as follows:
			 
		  2019	 2018
		  Rupees	 Rupees

	 Export		   -   	  -   
	 Domestic		   77,491,042 	  492,485,573 

				     77,491,042 	  492,485,573	
	

	 Trade receivables by geographical split is as follows: 					   
	

			   Sales		                     Trade debts	
		  LC	 Others	 Total          	Outstanding balance (Rupees)	
			   (Rupees)		  2019	 2018
	 Country						    
	    Pakistan	  -   	  121,607,382 	  121,607,382 	  77,491,042 	  492,485,573 

	 Total	  -   	  121,607,382 	  121,607,382 	  77,491,042 	  492,485,573 
							     

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade debts at the balance sheet date by type of customer 
is as follows:				  
	

	 This was included balance amounting to Rs. 26.222 million receivable from Imporient Chemicals 
(Private) Limited (group company) which was not past due and adjusted during the year.		
	

	 The maximum amount due from Imporient Chemicals (Private) Limited at the end of any month 
during the year was Rs. 31.098 million.

			 
		  2019	 2018
		  Rupees	 Rupees
			 
	 Dealers/industries		   77,491,042 	  492,485,573 
	 End-user customers		   -   	  -   

				     77,491,042 	  492,485,573 
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	 The aging of trade receivable (net of provisions) at the reporting date is:
			 
		  2019	 2018
		  Rupees	 Rupees

	 1-30 days		   -   	  -   
	 30-180 days		   77,491,042 	  125,560,763 
	 More than 180 days		   -   	  366,924,810 

				     77,491,042 	  492,485,573 
			 
	 The company’s most significant customers, are dealers from whom the receivable was Rs. 77.491 

million (2018: Rs. 435.396) million.			 
			 
	 Based on the past experience, consideration of financial position, past track records and recoveries, 

the Company believes that impairment allowance is necessary in respect of trade debtors past due, 
accordingly as mentioned in note 14, 37 and 6.1 appropriate impairment loss has been recorded in 
these financial statements.			 

			 
	 On the prudence basis an amount of Rs. 12.505 million (2018: Nil) has been charged to statement 

of  profit or loss during the year.

	 The Company’s bank balances can be assessed with reference to external credit ratings as 
follows:			 
		

						    
			   Ratings		  2019	 2018
		  Rating	 Short	 Long	 Rupees	 Rupees
		  Agency	 Term	 Term
						    
	 Bank Al-Habib Limited	 PACRA	 A1+	 AA+	  7,553,481 	  21,362 
	 Bank Al-Habib Limited	 PACRA	 A1+	 AA+	  18,214,979 	  -   
	 Bank Al-Habib Limited	 PACRA	 A1+	 AA+	  599 	  -   
	 United Bank Limited	 JCR-VIS	 A-1+	 AAA	  -   	  335,164 
	 MCB Bank Limited	 PACRA	 A1+	 AAA	  -   	  125,473 
	 National Bank of Pakistan	 PACRA	 A1+	 AAA	  79,736 	  79,736 
	 Habib Bank Limited	 JCR-VIS	 A-1+	 AAA	  -   	  153,967 
	 Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited	 PACRA	 A1+	 AA+	  -   	  763 
	 Summit Bank Limited	 JCR-VIS	 A-1	 A-	  -   	  635 
	 Bank Alfalah Limited	 PACRA	 A1+	 AA	  -   	  381,131 
	 JS Bank Limited	 PACRA	 A1+	 AA-	  -   	  35,342 
	 The Bank of Punjab	 PACRA	 A1+	 AA	  -   	  10,580 
	 Askari Bank Limited	 PACRA	 A1+	 AA+	  -   	  975,040 
	 Apna Microfinance Bank Limited	 PACRA	 A3	 BBB+	  -   	  27,443 
	 Meezan Bank Limited	 JCR-VIS	 A-1+	 AA	  -   	  3,668 

					      25,848,795 	  2,150,304

46.2	 Liquidity risk				  
	

	 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they 
fall due. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible to always 
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, 
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.			 
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	 	 Carrying	 Contractual	 One to 	 One to 	 Two to
		  amount	 cash flow	 twelve months	 two years	 five years	

		            ---------------	----------------------(Rupees)-------------------------------------
				  
	 2019
					   
	 Financial liabilities					   
						    
	 Long term financing	  100,000,000 	  114,590,000 	  114,590,000 	  -   	  -   
	 Loan from holding company	 965,960,400 	  1,089,120,351 	  -   	  -   	 1,089,120,351
	 Mark-up accrued	  86,562,191 	  86,562,191 	  86,562,191 	  -   	  -   
	 Trade and other payables	  259,506,429 	  259,506,429 	  259,506,429 	  -   	  -   
	 Unclaimed dividend	  255,930 	  255,930 	  255,930 	  -   	  -   

		   1,412,284,950 	  1,550,034,901 	  460,914,550 	  -   	 1,089,120,351 

	 2018
					   
	 Financial liabilities					   
						    
	 Long term financing	  200,000,000 	  200,000,000 	  100,000,000 	  100,000,000 	  -   
	 Loan from ex -holding company	 525,000,000 	  525,000,000 	  500,000,000 	  25,000,000 	  -   
	 Due to ex holding company	 1,154,442,231 	  1,154,442,231 	  1,154,442,231 	  -   	  -   
	 Trade and other payables	  234,651,839 	  234,651,839 	  234,651,839 	  -   	  -   
	 Mark-up accrued	  154,058,109 	  154,058,109 	  154,058,109 	  -   	  -   
	 Unclaimed dividend	  255,930 	  255,930 	  255,930 	  -   	  -   
	 Temporary bank overdraft	  25,982,166 	  25,982,166 	  25,982,166 	  -   	  -   

		   2,294,390,275 	  2,294,390,275 	  2,169,390,275 	  125,000,000 	  -   
46.3	 Market risk				  

	
						    
	 Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes 

in market interest rates or the market price due to a change in credit rating of the issuer or the 
instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of securities, 
and liquidity in the market. The company is exposed to currency risk and interest rate risk only.			 
		

a)	 Currency risk				  
	

						    
	 The Company is exposed to currency risk on trade debts, import of raw materials and stores and 

spares and export sales that are denominated in a currency other than the respective functional 
currency of the Company, primarily in U.S. dollar. The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk 
is as follows:

	 Note	 2019	 2018
		  Rupees	 Rupees
			 
	 Trade debts		   -   	  -
   
	 Gross balance sheet exposure		   -   	  -   
	 Outstanding letters of credit	 32.2	  -   	  -
   
	 Net exposure		   -   	  -    
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	 The following significant exchange rates applied during the year:			 
	

		                            Average rate	                        Reporting date rate

		  2019	 2018	 2019	 2018
					   
	 USD to PKR	  143.05 	  113.50 	  164.50 	  121.60 
					   
	 Sensitivity analysis			 

	
	 At reporting date, if the PKR had strengthened by 10% against the US dollar with all other variables 

held constant, post tax profit for the year would have been lower by the amount shown below.		
		

		  2019	 2018
		  Rupees	 Rupees
	 Effect on profit or loss			 

	
	 Loss			   -   	  -   
					   
	 The weakening of the PKR against US dollar would have had an equal but opposite impact on the 

post tax profits / loss.			 
	

b)	 Interest rate risk			 
	

	 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Majority of the interest rate exposure arises 
from long term loans and short term borrowings. These are benchmarked to variable rates which 
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. At the balance sheet date the interest rate profile 
of the Group’s interest - bearing financial instruments is as follows:			 
	

		  2019	 2018	 2019	 2018
		                          Effective rate	                      Carrying amount	
	 Financial liabilities			   Rupees	 Rupees
					   
	 Variable rate instruments:				  
	    Long term financing	 14.59%	 11.59%	  100,000,000 	     200,000,000 
	    Loan from ex -holding company	 11.715%	 8.540%	  -   	      525,000,000 
	    Loan from holding company	 12.715%	  -   	  965,960,400 	  -   

				     1,065,960,400   	  725,000,000 
					   
	 Effective interest rates are also mentioned in the respective notes to the financial statements.

	 Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments 		
	

	 A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have decreased / (increased) 
loss for the year by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in 
particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 
2018.			 
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		                       Profit and loss 	
		  100 bp	 100 bp
		  increase	 decrease
	 As at September 30, 2019			 
	 Cash flow sensitivity - Variable rate financial liabilities 		   (10,659,604)	  10,659,604    
				  
	 As at September 30, 2018			 
	 Cash flow sensitivity - Variable rate financial liabilities 		   (7,250,000)	  7,250,000    
				  
	 The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on (loss) / profit for the 

year and assets / liabilities of the Company.			 
				  
46.4	 Other price risk			 
				  
	 Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 

fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or 
currency risk). The Company is not exposed to any price risk as there are no financial instruments 
at the reporting date that are sensitive to price fluctuations.			 

				  
47.	 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS			 
				  
	 The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements 

approximate their fair values. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid 
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participations at the measurement 
date.			

				  
	 The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial 

instruments by valuation technique:			 
				  
	 Level 1:	Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.			 
	 Level 2:	Other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair 

value are observable, either directly or indirectly.			 
	 Level 3:	Techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that 

are not based on observable market data.			 
				  
	 There were no financial instruments held by the Company which are measured at fair value as of 

September 30, 2019 and September 30, 2018.			 
				  
	 Transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy are recognised at the end of the reporting period 

during which the changes have occurred. However, there were no transfers between levels of fair 
value hierarchy during the year.			 
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	 The following is categorization of assets measured at fair value at September 30, 2019: 

			                          2019				 
		  Level 1	  Level 2 	 Level 3	 Total
			                             Rupees				 
							    
	 Assets: 						   
	    Free hold land	  -   	   1,260,192,500 	  -   	   1,260,192,500 
	    Buildings	  -   	      273,509,000 	  -   	      273,509,000 
	    Plant and machinery	  -   	  1,275,000,000 	  -   	   1,275,000,000 
							    
			                          2019				 
		  Level 1	  Level 2 	 Level 3	 Total
			                             Rupees				 
							    
	 Assets: 						   
	    Free hold land	  -   	  1,080,150,000 	  -   	  1,080,150,000 
	    Buildings	  -   	     154,429,539 	  -   	     154,429,539 
	    Plant and machinery	 -   	  1,137,582,296 	  -   	  1,137,582,296 
							     

There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 & Levels 2 and 3 during the year and there were no 
changes in valuation techniques during the periods.				  
	

48.	 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES			 
	

	 The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for the year for remuneration, including 
all benefits, to the Chief Executive, Directors and Executives of the Company are as follows:

		                          Chief Executive	                         Directors		                         Executives	
		  2019	 2018	  2019 	 2018	 2019	 2018
			                ------------------------  (Rupees)  ------------------------			 

		
							     
	 Managerial remuneration	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  1,997,060 	  5,156,258 
	 House rent allowance	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  2,577,742 
	 Medical expenses	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Bonus (performance)	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Reimbursable expenses	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Gratuity	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   

		   -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  1,997,060 	  7,734,000 

	 Number of persons	 1	 1	  7 	 7	 3	 8
						    

	
48.1	 The Company also provides the Executives with Company maintained house. Additionally the 

Executives were provided free use of Cellular phone and company maintained cars in 2018 in 
accordance with their terms of employment.			 

48.2	 The Chief executive and directors of the company have waived their rights to receive meeting fee.	
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49.1	 The Company has valued certain fixed assets at fair value and classified under property, plant and 
equipment. The carrying value and level of fair value of these non - financial assets have been 
disclosed in the relevant note to the financial statements. 

	
49.2	 Due to the Company’s long standing business relationships with these counterparties and after 

giving due consideration to their strong financial standing, management does not expect non 
performance by these counter parties on their obligations to the Company. Accordingly, the credit 
risk is minimal.

	
49.3	 These financial assets classified as ‘loans and receivables’ have been classified as amortised cost.

50.	 RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS AND IMPAIRMENTS				  
	

	 As at the reporting date, recoverable amounts of all assets/cash generating units are equal to or 
exceed their carrying amounts, unless otherwise stated in financial statements.			 
		

51.	 CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION  				  
	

Installed capacity 
Tonnes

Actual production 
Tonnes Reason for shortfall

2019 2018 2019 2018
			 

						    
	 Crushing capacity				  
	    Sugarcane crushed	  480,000 	  480,000 	  26,976 	  208,594 	
	 Sugar production	  -   	  -   	    1,936 	    18,262 	
	 Days	         160	          160 	         22 	           93	

		  2019	 2018
		  Number	 Number

52.	 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

	 Number of employees at September 30			 
	    Permanent			 
	  	 Head office		  2	 2
		  Factory		  5	 144
	    Contractual/temporary			 
		  Head office		  -	 -
		  Factory		  247	 123
				  
	 Average number of employees during the year			 
				  
	    Permanent			 
		  Head office		  2	 2
		  Factory		  57	 140
	    Contractual/temporary			 
		  Head office		  -	 -
		  Factory		  149	 120
				  

The Capacity is under utilized due to 
frequent plant breakdown during the last 
year. However, during the year most of the 
time plant had been shut down.
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53.	 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT			 
				  
	 The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and 

market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors 
monitor the return on capital, which the Company defines as net profit after taxation divided by 
total shareholders’ equity. The Board of Directors also monitor the level of dividend to ordinary 
shareholders. There were no changes to the Company’s approach to capital management during 
the year and the Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements. 		
	

	 The Company’s objectives when managing capital are: 			 
				  
(i)     	 to safeguard the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide 

returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and			 
				  
(ii)    	 to provide an adequate return to shareholders.			 
				  
	 The Company manages the capital structure in the context of economic conditions and the risk 

characteristics of the underlying assets.  In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the 
Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets 
to reduce debt.			 

				  
	 The management at all times seeks to earn returns higher than its weighted average cost of capital, 

by increasing efficiencies in operations, so as to increase profitability.			 
				  
		  2019	 2018
		  Rupees	 Rupees
	 The proportion of debt to equity at the year end was:			 
				  
	 Total Borrowings (notes 21, 22 and 23)		   2,277,460,400 	  725,000,000 
	 Less: Balances with banks (note 18)		   (26,379,048)	  (23,761,973)

	 Net debt		   2,303,839,448 	  748,761,973 
	 Total equity - including surplus on fixed asset		   866,130,128 	  329,755,912
 
	 Total capital		   3,169,969,576 	  1,078,517,885 

	 Gearing ratio		  73%	 69%
				  
	 In accordance with the terms of agreement with the lenders of long term finances (as referred to 

in note 22 to these financial statements), the Company is required to comply with certain financial 
covenants in respect of capital requirements which the Company has compiled with throughout the 
reporting period. 			 

				  
54.	 CORRESPONDING FIGURES			 
				  
	 Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, whenever necessary to reflect more 

appropriate presentation of events and transactions  for the purpose of comparison in accordance 
with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. Following reclassification 
have been made for better presentation. 
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				    2018
	 Description	 From	  To 	 Rupees
				  
	 Balance sheet			 
	 Advance income tax	 Loan and advance	 Taxation - net	  7,102,633 
	 Provision for taxation	 Provision for taxation	 Taxation - net	  (12,012,897)
	 Advance from customers	 Trade debts	 Trade and 
			   other payable	  341,207,543 
				  
	 Statement of profit or loss			 
	 Auditors’ remuneration	 General and	 Other operating	
		     administrative expenses	 expenses	  560,000 
	 By products sales	 Cost of sales	 Sales	  70,591,434

	 Third year balance sheet has not been presented as there is no impact on beginning of the preceding 
period.

	
55.	 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS AFFECTING THE COMPANY’S 

FINANCIAL POSITION AND PERFORMANCE
	
55.1	 During the year the Company has paid loan to ex-holding company and obtained new borrowings 

from new holding company and directors.
	
55.2	 During the year the Company has been acquired by  other group of company as  explained in note 

3 to the financial statements.
	
55.3	 Change in accounting policies in respect to adoption of IFRS -9 Financial Instruments and IFRS -15 

Revenue from contracts with customers.
	
55.4	 All other significant transactions and events that have affected the Company’s financial position 

and performance during the year have been adequately disclosed in the notes to these financial 
statements.

	
56.	 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
	
	 There are no reportable events after the balance sheet date.
	
57.	 OPERATING SEGMENTS
	
	 These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of single reportable segments.
	
	 Sugar Sales represents 86.80% (2018: 94.89%) of the total sales of the company.
	
	 The Company’s sales relate to the customers in Pakistan.
	
	 All non - current assets of the company as at September 30, 2019 are located in Pakistan.
	
	 Sale to the customers accounts for more than 10% of the sales of the company was to Pattoki 

Sugar Mills Limited Rs. 75.011 million (61.68%) (2018: Nil).
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58.	 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION OF ISSUE
	
	 These financial statements were authorized for issue on  30 December 2019 by the Board of Directors 

of the Company.
	
59.	 GENERAL
	
	 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupees unless stated otherwise.			 

	CHIEF EXECUTIVE 	 DIRECTOR 	 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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Proxy Form
        No. of Shares	 Folio No./CDC Participant ID       

I/We ___________________________________________________________________________________________________

of___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Being member of BABA FARID SUGAR MILLS LIMITED hereby appoint 

Mr./Miss/Mrs. ______________________________________________________________________________________________

of failing him/her ________________________________________________________________________________________

being a member of the company a my/our proxy to attend, act and vote for me/us and on my/us and on my/or behalf, 
at the 41st Annual General Meeting of the company to be held Registered Office, 2-D-1, Gulberg III, Lahore on 
Monday, the 27th January, 2020 at 11.00 a.m. and every adjournment thereof:

As witness my hand this ______________________ day of ___________________________________ 2020

Signed by the said _______________________________ of ______________________________________

1.     Witness’s Signature		 Member’s Signature
Name: ______________________________
CNIC No. ___________________________
Address: ____________________________

2.     Witness’s Signature		
Name: ______________________________
CNIC No. ___________________________
Address: ____________________________

Date _____________________

Place ____________________

Notes: ___________________

1.	 This form of  proxy, in order to be effected must be deposited duly completed at the registered office 
2-D-1, Gulberg III, Lahore, not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting.

2.	 A Proxy must be  a member of the company.

3.	 Signature should agree with the specimen registered with the company.

4.	 CDC shareholder’s entitled to attend and vote at this meeting must bring with them their Computerized 
National Identity Card / passport in original to provide his/her identity.

Revenue Stamp
 Rs. 5/-
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IF UNDELIVERED PLEASE RETURN TO
BABA FARID SUGAR MILLS LIMITED

2-D-1, Gulberg III, Lahore


